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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Registration Statement on Form 10 is being filed by EZTrader Inc., formerly known as Win Global Markets, Inc.,
in order to register its common stock, par value $0.001 per share, voluntarily pursuant to Section 12(g) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Unless otherwise noted or indicated by the context,
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the terms “EZTrader”, “the Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to EZTrader Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements contained in this Registration Statement on Form 10 that are not historical facts are “forward-looking
statements”. Our business and operations are subject to substantial risks, which increase the uncertainty described in
the forward-looking statements contained in this Registration Statement on Form 10. Such forward-looking statements
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may be identified by, among other things, the use of forward-looking terminology such as “believes,” “intends,” “plan,”
“expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” or “anticipates” or the negative thereof or other variations thereon or comparal
terminology, or by discussions of strategy that involve risks and uncertainties. In particular, our statements regarding

the potential growth of our markets and business outlook are examples of such forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements include risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, our future growth being
dependent upon the success of our business activity in the field of binary options and other factors, including future
financings, and general economic conditions and regulatory developments, not within our control. The factors
discussed herein, including those risks described in Item 1A, could cause actual results and developments to be
materially different from those expressed in or implied by such statements. The forward-looking statements are made

only as of the date of this filing, and, except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update such
forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances. Readers are also urged to carefully review

and consider the various disclosures we have made in this Registration Statement on Form 10.
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Item 1. Business.
Overview

We are engaged in the business of offering online trading of binary options. We conduct our operations and business
with and through our wholly owned subsidiaries: (a) Win Global Markets Inc. (Israel) Ltd., an Israeli company and (b)
WGM Services Ltd., a company registered in Cyprus ("WGM"). Trading is being offered by WGM on
http://www.eztrader.com, http://www.globaloption.com, and http://www.ezinvest.com. Information contained on, or
that can be accessed through, our websites does not constitute a part of this Registration Statement on Form 10, and
we have included our website addresses in this Registration Statement on Form 10 solely as inactive textual
references. We will post on our websites any materials required to be so posted on such websites under applicable
corporate or securities laws and regulations, including, posting any XBRL interactive financial data required to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and any notices of general meetings of our shareholder.

We have developed and currently operate an online trading platform for retail customers to trade a wide range of
binary options internationally with more than 100 different assets including indices, international stocks, commodities
and currency pairs (“Trading Platform”).

The Trading Platform enables retail customers to trade binary options in more than 30 countries. It is accessible from
multiple operating systems (Windows, smartphones (iOS and Android) and tablets) and the internet. The Trading
Platform has been self-developed and is proprietary. The Trading Platform has been designed to be as intuitive and as
easy to use as possible. The Trading Platform has been localized into eleven languages. We believe that our emphasis
on technology, together with targeted online marketing strategy, has helped to differentiate us from our competitors.
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In June 2013, the Cyprus Securities and Exchange Commission (“CYSEC”) authorized us to freely provide our services
in all European Union (“EU”) member states. To comply with U.S. federal securities laws and U.S. Commodity Futures
Trading Commission (“CFTC”) regulations, we block U.S. persons from using our Trading Platform. We also block
Canadian persons from using our Trading Platform.

We conduct our operations from two offices which are located in Nicosia, Cyprus and Tel-Aviv, Israel. Currently we
have 104 full time employees. We manage risk in a number of ways, in particular by limiting financial exposure to
any individual customer to a relatively low level as well as limiting exposure to any individual asset. We generate our
revenues principally from the margin between winning customers and losing customers. We do not charge customers
a commission on trades.

Our company was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on April 23, 2002. Effective as of July 14, 2014,
we changed our name from Win Global Markets Inc. to EZTrader, Inc. Our shares were registered under the Exchange
Act from December 24, 2002 until August 26, 2013. On August 26, 2013, we filed a Form 15 with the SEC to
voluntarily deregister our common stock and suspend our reporting obligations under the Exchange Act. We are now
filing this Registration Statement on Form 10 in order to re-register our shares of common stock with the SEC and
resume our reporting obligations under the Exchange Act.

Historically, we have been engaged in the business of offering technology servicing the interactive gaming industry
for regulated markets, mainly through third parties. In November 2009 following sales of our assets we changed our
business model and in March of 2010 launched our binary options business. On June 5, 2011, as further discussed
below, our subsidiary, WGM completed the acquisition of proprietary software, customer database and all rights
related thereto, including the domain name www.eztrader.com, from Venice Technologies Ltd., an Israeli corporation,
which platform features online trading of binary options.
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Our Current Business
The Binary Options Market

A Binary Option is a type of option where the payoff is straightforward — it pays back either some fixed amount of a
trade or nothing at all. The two main types of binary options are the cash-or-nothing binary option and the
asset-or-nothing binary option. The cash-or-nothing binary option pays some fixed amount of cash if the option
expires “in-the-money” while the asset-or-nothing pays the value of the underlying security. Thus, the options are binary
in nature because there are only two possible outcomes. They are also called all-or-nothing options, digital options and
Fixed Return Options (“FROs”).

Binary Options — featured by online providers

Unlike “regular” options that are offered by different exchanges and which are contracts where the customer pays for the
right to buy or sell an underlying asset at a given price, an online binary option is a contract where the customer pays
for the right to receive a fixed return in case the price of the underlying asset ends up higher or lower than the strike
price.

In addition, unlike traditional stock-exchange-offered binary options that pay a fixed amount or nothing only if the

option expires in-the-money, online binary options entitle the customer to gain a fixed return, in addition to his

transaction amount (usually around 75%) if his prediction, either for a higher or lower strike price, has been achieved

at the expiration of the underlying asset. If the customer’s prediction is not fulfilled, he loses between 85%-90% of his
investment. The difference between what we receive when customers lose and what we pay out to the customers when

they win, constitutes our revenue. For example, if a purchase is made at 10:15 AM of a binary call option on XYZ

Corp.’s stock, struck at $100 with a binary payoff of 75%, then, if at the expiry time of 11:00 AM the stock is trading
above $100, $175 is paid by us back to the customer. If its stock is trading below $100, only $10 is paid by us to the

customer and we generate revenue of $90.

Online binary options usually carry an expiration date, or time, of once every hour, end of business day, depending on
the specific chosen expiration period.

Online Binary Options Market

The online financial trading industry is competitive and evolving. As an international provider of binary options, we
compete primarily against businesses like AnyOption.com and 24Option.com.

There are a number of websites competing in other online trading mediums, such as trading in pairs of foreign
currencies, commodities, equities and indexes.

Different Types of Binary Options

Binary options are simple put or call options conditioned only by the price and the expiration date. They refer to
conditional scenarios that if they come true, either validate or invalidate the option. The customer knows ahead of his
investment the amount of the desired payout he will get if his conditional scenario proves to be right or his loss if his

conditional scenario proves to be wrong.

Binary Options Websites
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We offer customers, mainly from European markets, the ability to trade on options through www.ezrader.com and
www.globaloption.com. Approximately 93% of our revenues is derived from the European market. We do not offer
our services to customers from the United States (“U.S.”), Canada, Japan, Turkey and certain other South East Asian
countries. Specifically, we market our online binary options trading business towards customers who are seeking to
realize a profit from their trades within a short period of time. We market to such customers because, in our opinion,
our Trading Platform features a novel venue and a simpler and straightforward method for the realization of
immediate returns on trades in the global financial markets.

Customers use our binary options platform to choose either a put option or a call option. In either case, if the option
expires “in-the-money”, customers receive about 75% return on their trades or lose between 85%-90% of their trades if
their option expires “out-of-the-money”. Expirations take place once every sixty seconds, or every hour, or at the end of
each day depending on the specific chosen expiration period.

In order for customers to start trading, they are required to open an account and provide their exact personal

information, a process which is simple and straightforward. Once this phase is complete, customers have an array of
methods to make a deposit. They can elect to use their credit card, e-wallet provider or effectuate a bank wire transfer.

Credit card and e-wallet deposits are recorded immediately as credits in the customers’ account and they can then
proceed to make their trades.

All quotations of current rates and active assets of the different trading exchanges are provided through eSignal and
NASDAQ OMX in real time.

Also, customers are provided with a sophisticated back-office tool, enabling monitoring of their entire account
activity.
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Marketing

We invest significantly in marketing and advertising as we believe that marketing and advertising is critical for
increasing number of new customers and active customers which are among the main drivers of revenue growth. We
seek to acquire customers through a range of marketing online channels such as media buying, affiliation with
marketing partners, Pay Per Click (PPC), Search Engine Optimization (SEO) and social media.

In August 2014, we signed exclusive three year premium partnership agreements with Bayer 04 Leverkusen, a
Premier Bundesliga Football Team, and with Feyenoord Rotterdam, one of the most successful football teams in the
Netherlands pursuant to which we became a sponsor of these two teams and receive certain rights, including on-line
and field display of our logos and the right to use the website addresses of these teams for our marketing and
advertising purposes.

In September 2014, we signed a sponsorship agreement with VFL Wolfsburg women team, a Premier Bundesliga
Football Team which won the European Champions league in the past two years, pursuant to which we became a
sponsor and received certain rights, including on-line and field display of our logos and the right to use the website
addresses of these teams for our marketing and advertising purposes.

Our marketing strategy is to focus on investing in targeted and cost-effective marketing initiatives, including in both
online and off-line media channels, affiliate programs, sponsorships and co-operations with leading consumer
manufacturers, which provide us measurable result. The majority of advertising is conducted through online channels
such as search engine websites (such as Google, MSN and Yahoo), apps and via the “OPTION AFFILIATES.COM”
program, which is an extensive affiliates network with approximately 2,500 affiliates.

Under the media buying channel we seek and maintain local websites that can generate quality traffic source, within

the “OPTION AFFILIATES.COM” program. We maintain a large number of “affiliate” marketing partners, typically
operators of one or more websites on which certain products and services are promoted. We provide our affiliates
with a range of marketing materials designed to direct potential customers to the Trading Platform, and affiliates are
compensated on a success basis.

We have engaged with business intelligence providers in order to measure our marketing results. Business intelligence
systems have provided us with full insights on user potential, personal preferences and operative platform to connect
with users (via emails, SMS and our call center).

We are able to analyze this data to determine the conversion ratios between the “clicks” on the website and sign-ups for
real money accounts. In reviewing this information, we are able to calculate the return on investment and the
maximum price per click we are prepared to pay for a particular online marketing campaign, and as a result, to
allocate marketing resources effectively. We believe online awareness of our brand is growing.

Strategy

We intend to grow our customer base further and increase the proportion of customers who trade frequently and for a
longer period of time, resulting in an increase in the number of trades executed on the Trading Platform. We intend to
do this by increasing brand awareness and business intelligence and attracting more customers in regulated markets, to
and retaining more customers on, the Trading Platform. We believe that increased brand awareness with business
intelligence will generate greater Average Revenue Per User (“ARPU”) by improving our perception by customers and
hence willingness to trade on the Trading Platform with greater frequency and in greater quantum. We believe that
increased brand awareness alongside with deep business intelligence has the potential to improve the margin between
ARPU and Average User Acquisition Cost (“AUAC”).
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We also intend to increase our customer base through entry into new markets. Where appropriate, we will also
consider setting up local offices or subsidiaries in such markets and to extend our product and technology offering.

We intend to further update the number of financial assets offered for binary options trading on the Trading Platform.
We believe that by adjusting the product portfolio, we will attract more relevant customers to the Trading Platform
resulting in a variety of trading activity.

We have extended our trading platform and it is now available on many leading mobile devices. We strongly believe
that our ability to deliver the most advanced and reliable mobile platform will enable us to continue to have a leading
position in the market place.

Trading Platform

We believe that our success is primarily due to the self-developed proprietary technology supporting the Trading
Platform:

(i) Customer interface the Trading Platform

The Trading Platform provides a simple and consistent interface for customers across a number of different devices. It
has been designed to be as intuitive and easy to use as possible and provides customers with real-time prices,
execution facilities and a multitude of order types. Through these proprietary and user-friendly delivery channels,
customers may trade and access their account information online through a number of different mediums, which
increases accessibility to, and traffic on, the Trading Platform.

The Trading Platform’s customer interface is designed to interact efficiently, with as little human input as possible. The
Trading Platform processes each customer’s trades automatically, updating the “back office” account information in
real-time. Real-time position-keeping also allows customers to monitor their open positions and trading activity
continuously.
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As a result of our self-developed proprietary technology, we pay no external license fees for our core Trading
Platform technology. This allows us to operate with internal timeline and allow flexible account management with
customers not limited by third party limitations from a platform service provider.

In the year ended December 31, 2013 over 152,000 trades were closed on the Trading Platform (during the first half of
2014 over 319,000 trades). We believe there is significant scope for the Trading Platform to process more trades,
without a material increase in development costs. The Trading Platform is designed to accommodate additional
instruments and customers easily, with limited modifications and minimal capital expenditure.

(i1) Robust, scalable technology platform and infrastructure

The modular server architecture is designed to maximize trade reliability, speed and network security across our
network. In addition, we operate through a number of different scalable servers, so that if one or more should fail, the
remaining servers should be in a position to maintain our operations. We believe that our business model is scalable as
a result of the level of automation in the Trading Platform.

The network is protected against unauthorized intrusions by firewalls and, to maximize reliability and security, we
have developed a backup system in the event the systems are unable to perform. All data held in the network is
clustered in a “Storage Area Network™ and is automatically backed up every hour with the backups being transported
offsite once each week. To date, we have never experienced an unauthorized intrusion into our network.

While we are responsible for the administration of the Trading Platform, we use a third party hosting service. The
third party service provider, which has a SAS70 accreditation, also provides monitoring services. In the case of a
disaster, the third party service provider is responsible for the provision of replacement devices that are ready for
deployment.

We believe that as the binary options market continues to experience growth, we have the proprietary technology to
grow with it with a view to increasing our market share. In addition, developing the necessary proprietary technology
presents high barriers to entry for new entrants into the market due to the time-consuming and capital-intensive
software development which is initially required.

Proprietary Intellectual Property

To our knowledge, none of our products or services is subject to any patents, patent applications or registered
copyrights. We believe that our products and services, including the Trading Platform, are primarily protected by
copyrights, trademark, trade secrets and contract laws in the jurisdictions we operate. However, despite our efforts to
protect our proprietary rights from unauthorized use or disclosure, our efforts may not be sufficient or successful. It
may be possible that some of our innovations may not be protectable. If third parties were to use or otherwise
misappropriate our source code, other copyright materials, trademarks, service marks or other proprietary rights
without our consent or approval, our competitive position could be harmed, or we could become involved in costly
and distracting litigation to enforce our rights.

We do not currently own any registered copyrights or trademarks.
Customer base
We are a highly customer focused business as both winning and retaining customers is our key strategy. The Trading

Platform is only used by retail customers and is not available to institutional traders.

10
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We believe that our business is attractive to customers for several reasons, including, but not limited to, the following:
ethe Trading Platform provides a simple and consistent interface for customers across a number of different devices;
o we aim to offer competitive dealing options which vary by instrument category;

e we offer binary options linked to a broad range of underlying instruments, including indices, international stocks,
commodities and currency pairs; and

eour strategy involves offering bonuses which are designed to attract new customers and encourage existing
customers to trade with real-money on the Trading Platform.

11
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Industry background and markets

We believe that customers are being attracted to Binary Option trading due to the range of underlying financial
instruments, high payout offering and the ability to gain exposure to such instruments with a relatively low capital
requirement.

We believe that, internationally, there is an increased acceptance of binary options both as a viable investment and as
a product which offers a simple ability to trade. We believe that, going forward, customers will favor regulated online
trading providers with a global reach and, accordingly, we continue to enhance and develop our existing Trading
Platform and seek to anticipate market trends and customers’ expectations.

The online financial trading industry is competitive and evolving. As an international provider of binary options, we
compete primarily against businesses like AnyOption.com, 24Option.com.

We believe we have several key competitive advantages in our marketplace including, but not limited to:

° no commission on trades;
. a technology platform which is not reliant on third party software;
. a simple offering consisting of only binary options across four underlying asset classes; and

e auser-friendly Trading Platform which allows the users to handle his trades in a very simple way; and
. a state of the art Trading Platform application for mobile devices

Our user review scores online are typically higher than our peers which we believe supports our strength offering. In
addition, our focus on developing our online brand and presence is reflected in the fact that we perform competitively
with our peers both on a worldwide basis and in our major markets.
Internationally diversified revenue model
We have internationally diversified revenue streams. In the year ended December 31, 2013 and in the six month
period ended June 30, 2014, revenues deriving from customers based in the European Economic Area (“EEA”) (as
defined and listed in the regulation page of our website www.eztrader.com) represented 64.8% and 93.4% of our
revenue, respectively. The remainders of our revenues are derived from Singapore, Austria, Russia and South Africa.
However none of these markets represents a material share of our revenues.
Trading and Customer limits

Trading limits

The technology developed by us incorporates real-time financial risk limitation systems with certain hedging and
trading limit triggers.

Customer limits

Monetary limits placed on customers are: (a) exposure to any single instrument; (b) aggregate open positions as a
whole; and (c) aggregate deposit amounts. Customer limits are determined with reference to, among other things, a

12
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customer’s credit score, trading history, and location and other due diligence results.

The limits placed on individual customers mitigate the risk that we become reliant on any single customer or small
group of customers for our revenue and also mean that we have no significant exposure to the trading positions of any
such customers.

When these limits are reached the Trading Platform automatically ceases to accept trades from the relevant individual
until such time as exposure level falls below the relevant threshold(s).

Current trading and future prospects

We believe that we provide substantial opportunity based around the delivery of a binary option Trading Platform to
retail customers in a growing international binary option market. We believe that an increasing awareness and
willingness for customers around the world to trade derivative products such as Binary Options will offer us potential
growth.

In July 2014, we initiated the process of obtaining a Futures Commodities Merchant (“FCM”) license in the United
States which may enable us to operate in the U.S. in compliance with applicable regulations.

Government Regulation
U.S. Regulation of Online Binary Options

We are not aware of any clear definitive ruling that finds that online trading of binary options would constitute illegal
activity under U.S. federal laws. However, in an investor alert, the SEC took the position that “if the terms of a binary
option contract provide for a specified return based on the price of a company’s securities,” the binary option contract is
a security and must be registered. To comply with CFTC and SEC regulations, we block U.S. persons from using our
Trading Platform. We also block Canadian persons from using our Trading Platform.

The SEC filed a civil injunctive action on June 5, 2013, in the United States District Court for the District of Nevada
against Banc de Binary Ltd. (“Banc de Binary”). The SEC alleged that the binary options sold by Banc de Binary were
securities and that Banc de Binary had violated federal securities laws by offering and selling the binary options to
investors across the U.S. without first registering them as securities. The SEC also alleged that Banc de Binary had
been acting as a broker when offering and selling the binary options but had failed to register with the SEC as a broker
as required under U.S. laws. The CFTC filed a parallel civil injunctive action against Banc de Binary in the District of
Nevada on the same date, alleging that Banc de Binary offered and sold commodity options to U.S. customers in
violation of the Commodity Exchange Act and CFTC Regulations. The CFTC action further alleged that Banc de
Binary operated as an unregistered futures commission merchant in violation of the Commodity Exchange Act and
CFTC Regulations.

13
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In July 2014 we started the process of obtaining a FCM license in the U.S. which may enable us to operate in the
United States in compliance with applicable regulations.

Non-U.S. Regulation of Online Binary Options

Each country in which we offer our online binary options may have local specific regulations. We aim to comply with
such regulations and rules and will obtain any relevant licenses or regulatory approvals in any territory as we may be
required to operate our online binary options business.

In May 2012, CYSEC decided to include binary options in the list of financial instruments that fall under the
Investment Services and Activities and Regulated Markets Law of 2007-2009 (the “CYSEC Market Law”). The CYSEC
Market Law requires, in part, those offering investment services related to binary options to apply for a license to
operate as a Cyprus Investment Firm (“CIF”) by November 3, 2012. On November 2, 2012, WGM filed an application
with CYSEC, for the granting of a license to operate as a CIF with respect to its binary options business, as is required
by the CYSEC Market Law. In June 2013, we were granted a license to operate as a CIF. We completed pass porting
for the 30 countries in the European market.

We have an office located at 12, Themistocli Dervi and 33 Vassilisis Frederikis Office 303, 1066 Nicosia, Cyprus and
have obtained authorization to provide investment and ancillary services from CYSEC as per sections 6(6) and 22 of
the CYSEC Market Law on June 14, 2013 with authorization number 203/13. Under section 79 of the CYSEC
Market Law, an investment firm regulated by a commission must obtain approval for freedom to provide investment
and ancillary services in another EU member state; we, using the trading name “EZTrader”, have obtained approval
from CYSEC for free provision of services in all EU Member states on March 31, 2014.

Our retail users are classified as “consumers” under the Unfair Contract Terms Act 1977 and Unfair Terms in Consumer
Contracts Regulations (“UTCCR”). We are required to comply with Cyprus consumer protection laws such as the Unfair
Contract Terms Act 1977 and UTCCR, breach of which could result in us being subject to regulatory sanctions,
receiving customer complaints and claims for losses, and not being able to enforce contracts against our customers.
Similar consumer protection laws in other jurisdictions could have the same result.

WGM must comply with the pan-European regime established by the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive
2004/39/EC (“MiFID”), which became effective on November 1, 2007, and regulates the provision of investment
services and activities throughout the EEA.

Key Strengths

We believe that we have a number of attributes which, collectively, differentiate us in the market in which we
operate, including, but not limited to:

e fully regulated within EU as a market maker;

e strong brand recognition;

e auser-friendly and reliable Trading Platform that is consistent across multiple operating systems and devices;
a state of the art Trading Platform application for mobile devices

e afocus on online marketing to drive customer acquisition;

14
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e afinancial risk limitation model;

e abroad range of assets traded by binary options;

e a scalable business model; and

e afocus on offering retail (rather than institutional) customers the ability to trade in binary options.
Competition

We believe that the online binary options industry is young but rapidly growing. Today, there are still only a small
number of websites that feature trading on binary options, some of which have similar product offerings to ours. Such
websites include www.anyoption.com, and www.24option.com.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business involves a high degree of risk, and our securities are highly speculative. Potential investors should
carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below and the other information in this Registration
Statement on Form 10 before deciding whether to invest in shares of our common stock. If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.
This could cause the trading price of our common stock to decline, with the loss of part or all of an investment in our
common stock. The following risk factors are not the only risk factors we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations.

15
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Risks Related to Our Financial Condition and Capital Requirements
We may need to raise additional capital to fund our ongoing operations and growth.

The amount of our future capital requirements depends primarily on the rate at which we increase our revenues and
correspondingly decrease our use of cash to fund operations. Cash used for operations will be affected by numerous
known and unknown risks and uncertainties including, but not limited to, our ability to successfully market our
products and services and the degree to which competitive products and services are introduced to the market. As long
as our cash flow from operations remains insufficient to completely fund operations, we will continue depleting our
financial resources and seek additional capital through equity and/or debt financing. If we raise additional capital
through the issuance of debt, this will result in increased interest expense. If we raise additional funds through the
issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, the percentage ownership of our Company held by existing
stockholders will be reduced and those stockholders may experience some dilution. In addition, new securities may
contain rights, preferences or privileges that are senior to those of our common stock.

There is no assurance that profitable operations can be sustained.
As of June 30, 2014, we had an accumulated deficit of $27.1 Million. We expect to incur substantial costs that may
not be offset by increased revenues. These costs include the following: hiring new staff and investing in marketing of

our binary options business.

Although we achieved a substantial increase in operating revenues, our operating results are likely to be difficult to
predict and are likely to fluctuate substantially.

Our operating results are likely to fluctuate significantly due to a variety of factors, many of which are outside of our
control. Factors that may harm our business or cause our operating results to fluctuate include the following:

. technical difficulties with respect to the use of our binary options platform; and
. adverse regulatory developments in the business of binary options.

We have financed our operations primarily through the sale of equity securities.

We may need to continue to finance our operations with the sale of equity securities. If we do so, our stockholders will
experience dilution to their percentage interest in us, which may be substantial, and the new equity securities may
have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of existing holders of our shares of common stock. If we are
unable to obtain future financing by way of the issuance of convertible debt, the sale of equity securities, we may have
to substantially curtail or cease operations or find a merger partner on terms which, if available at all, may be
unfavorable.

Regulatory Risks

We are subject to regulatory capital requirements under the laws of Cyprus and failure to meet the requirements could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are regulated under CYSEC Market Law, which requires us to meet the capital adequacy tests as per section 67 of

the CYSEC Market Law, where a CIF must have its own funds which are at all times more than or equal to the sum of
its capital requirements.
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Currently, we are required to submit capital adequacy reports on a monthly basis. CYSEC as per section 72 of the
CYSEC Market Law considers that a CIF must make certain public disclosures in an information report and submit to
the CYSEC all information relating to its capital adequacy. We are required to maintain a minimum net capital of
€1,000,000. Failure to implement the recommendations of the CYSEC’s individual capital guidance could lead to
enforcement action being taken against WGM and its officers and directors. Since we obtained our license to operate
as a CIF from CYSEC, we have been in compliance with all the CYSEC’s requirements.

Furthermore, section 74 of the CYSEC Market Law states that if a CIF violates the provisions of Part VIII of the
CYSEC Market Law in regards to capital adequacy, the CYSEC may, judging at its absolute discretion the seriousness
of the infringement, set for the CIF a deadline for compliance, impose administrative fine upon the CIF, and may
consider proceeding with the withdrawal or suspension of the CIF authorization.

The minimum capital requirements to which WGM is subject may affect our ability to distribute profits which we
would otherwise be permitted to distribute. In addition, any changes to the regulatory capital requirements in any of
the jurisdictions in which WGM operates could restrict the pace of our expansion or affect the balance of the products
we are able to offer and/or the jurisdictions in which we are allowed to offer them.

Any such change in our regulatory capital requirements could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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Government regulation could require us to register our business or otherwise effect our operations.

We are not aware of any clear definitive ruling that finds that online trading of binary options would constitute illegal
activity under U.S. laws, or the laws of the jurisdictions in which we operate. However, in an investor alert, the SEC
took the position that “if the terms of a binary option contract provide for a specified return based on the price of a
company’s securities,” the binary option contract is a security and must be registered. To comply with CFTC and SEC
regulations, we block U.S. persons from using our Trading Platform. We also block Canadian persons from using our
Trading Platform .Nonetheless, there remains a risk that a contrary result could be reached in any such jurisdictions
and we could be required to register our activities with some or all such jurisdictions, face penalties or sanctions
and/or otherwise have our operations negatively affected. The SEC filed a civil injunctive action on June 5, 2013, in
the United States District Court for the District of Nevada against Banc de Binary. The SEC alleged that the binary
options sold by Banc de Binary were securities and that Banc de Binary had violated federal securities laws by
offering and selling the binary options to investors across the U.S. without first registering them as securities. The
SEC also alleged that Banc de Binary had been acting as a broker when offering and selling the binary options but had
failed to register with the SEC as a broker as required under U.S. laws. The CFTC filed a parallel civil injunctive
action against Banc de Binary in the District of Nevada on the same date, alleging that Banc de Binary offered and
sold commodity options to U.S. customers in violation of the Commodity Exchange Act and CFTC Regulations. The
CFTC action further alleged that Banc de Binary operated as an unregistered futures commission merchant in
violation of the Commodity Exchange Act and CFTC Regulations.

In July 2014 we started the process of obtaining a FCM license in the United States which may enable us to operate in
the United States in compliance with applicable regulations. There is no assurance that we will be successful in such
process.

Withdrawal or amendment of regulatory authorizations or non-compliance with, or changes to, the legal or regulatory
framework in which we operate may have a significant adverse effect on our business and operations.

Withdrawal or amendment of regulatory authorizations in respect of all or part of the business carried on by us or in
respect of the fitness and propriety of one or more individuals to perform their current roles (including any of our
directors) might oblige us to cease conducting a particular type of business or modify the manner in which it is
conducted. In particular, if our Cyprus CYSEC authorization were to be withdrawn, we would be unable to operate
our business throughout the EEA — such jurisdictions contributed 64.8% and 21.6% of our revenue for the financial
period ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. In addition, where authorization of a particular individual
has been removed, this would result in the need to allocate to different individuals responsibility for the part of the
business which had been that individual’s responsibility.

Failure to obtain prior regulatory authorization in a jurisdiction where we have operated or the refusal of a regulator to
grant that authorization in a jurisdiction where we may wish to operate could prevent us from maintaining or
expanding our business. We have never been refused any license which we have applied for.

Further, changes to laws or regulations, including the enactment of new requirements in relation to regulatory
authorization, financial promotions, the use of third party affiliates, taxation, the internet or e-commerce (or a change
in the application or interpretation of existing regulations or laws by regulators or other authorities), in any jurisdiction
in which we currently carry on business might oblige us to cease conducting business, or modify the manner in which
we conduct business, in that jurisdiction. Such changes could also have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results and/or subject us or our directors, officers, or customers to additional taxation
or civil, criminal, regulatory or other action.
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For example, it is envisaged that the CYSEC will take a more proactive and interventionist approach than its

predecessor, the Financial Services Authority, in regulating the conduct of business of investment firms such as

WGM. The recent reform of the UK regulatory regime may also lead to changes to conduct of business regulation. In

particular, the CYSEC has product intervention powers which include the power to ban products and services and it

can also direct a regulated firm to withdraw or amend an advertisement. The implementation and use of the CYSEC’s
new powers and more interventionist approach could place an increased demand on our management, compliance and

information technology resources in the mid to long term and could divert resources from the normal operation of our

business or the expansion of that business. This could have a material adverse effect on our future operations and

consequently on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Any non-compliance with applicable laws or regulations in any jurisdiction could have a significant impact on the
way in which we conduct our business. Any non-compliance with applicable laws or regulations could subject our
employees, officers and directors to criminal penalties, civil lawsuits, warning notices, fines (which may be excessive)
and/or other sanctions from regulators or authorities.

Operating via the internet in different jurisdictions exposes us to a number of risks which may have a significant
adverse effect on our business and operations.

We currently have operations in various jurisdictions outside the EEA, in which we allow our customers to execute
transactions over the internet. The regulatory and legal framework in these jurisdictions is complex and varies
significantly. We decide to operate in such jurisdictions based on our view of: (a) the local legal and regulatory regime
in the relevant jurisdiction (in relation to which local advice has been sought by us in most (but not all) cases); and (b)
our estimation of the legal, regulatory and commercial risk in the relevant jurisdiction (including the likelihood of
enforcement action being taken against us and/or our directors).
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We have grown rapidly and as part of this growth have, in the past, commenced trading in a limited number of
jurisdictions where operations have been found to constitute, or are likely to constitute, an offence and the penalties
(whether civil, criminal, regulatory or other) against us or our directors are unknown. We have taken measures to
mitigate these risks. We have adopted a policy which will take effect, following the effective date of this Registration
Statement on Form 10, requiring certain action to be taken to reduce risk in any jurisdiction in which we plan to begin
operations following the effective date of this Registration Statement on Form 10. Such policy also requires a higher
standard of due diligence than has previously been undertaken to be conducted before operations are commenced in
any new jurisdiction following the effective date of this Registration Statement on Form 10.

In some jurisdictions, it is not necessarily certain whether laws or regulations are applicable to the relationship we
have with customers in those jurisdictions or, if they are applicable, the effect of those laws or regulations may itself
be unclear. It is also possible that changes to the law (or interpretations thereof) or to our business may have occurred
since the legal or regulatory position in relation to any particular jurisdiction was reviewed by us.

In the past, we have not operated, or may not have operated, and there is a risk that going forward we may not operate,
in compliance with the laws (whether civil, criminal, regulatory or other) of some of those jurisdictions from which it
is possible to access our products. We have taken measures to mitigate these risks. The governments of certain of
those jurisdictions may attempt to regulate our products or services or take enforcement action, such as bringing
prosecutions against us or our directors, for violations of relevant laws and regulations. Such circumstances could also
result in or contribute to the CYSEC imposing a sanction on us including withdrawal of our regulatory authorization.
Any such action could make it difficult for us to operate our international business in its current or anticipated form. In
addition, we or our directors could become liable to administrative, criminal, financial or other penalties in certain
jurisdictions in relation to past or future conduct, or could be unable to enforce claims against customers who are
nationals or residents of those jurisdictions and/or such customers may be able to claim compensation from us for
their losses.

Financial promotions regimes and other regulations may impact our ability to advertise.

We are reliant on online marketing channels to advertise our business and increase our customer base. However, in
certain jurisdictions, the promotion of investment activities is regulated, which restricts the manner in which we may
advertise in that jurisdiction.

While we have in place certain policies designed to ensure that all promotional materials are subject to review and
approval before being released, such policies are subject to, and have in the past been affected by, human error and
technological failure. Further, restrictions or requirements imposed by third party providers of online marketing
services (such as word counts), or malfunctions or “bugs” in the software or systems of such third parties, may result in
the future in certain financial promotions to be released by us not being in compliance with laws and regulations.

Any non-compliance with the laws or regulatory requirements could subject our employees, directors and officers to
disciplinary action, criminal penalties, civil lawsuits and/or fines. Further, there is a heightened risk of the CYSEC
imposing a sanction on WGM as a result of repeated instances of non-compliance with the financial promotions
regime. Any such action could have an adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition and operating
results.

No assurance can be given that new laws, rules or regulations will not be enacted, or existing requirements applied, in
a manner which would restrict or curtail our current advertising activities (including our use of third party affiliates for
advertising). Any restriction on our ability to advertise in a particular jurisdiction or jurisdictions could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
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Laws, regulations or rules in the United Kingdom or other jurisdictions where we operate could result in customer
agreements being deemed unenforceable as against the customer.

Our retail users are classified as “consumers” under the Unfair Contract Terms Act 1977 and Unfair Terms in Consumer
Contracts Regulations (“UTCCR”). We are required to comply with Cyprus consumer protection laws such as the Unfair
Contract Terms Act 1977 and UTCCR, breach of which could result in us being subject to regulatory sanctions,
receiving customer complaints and claims for losses, and not being able to enforce contracts against our customers.
Similar consumer protection laws in other jurisdictions could have the same result. Any such events would damage
our reputation and impact our business, financial condition and operating results. Further, the contract in place
between us and a customer may be deemed void or unenforceable in certain jurisdictions if construed as a contract for
gambling or betting or otherwise contrary to public policy. Although we have not faced a claim of this kind to date,
there is a risk that customers who have executed a trade on the Trading Platform could later demand to recover any
funds they have lost as a result of such trade. If such claims were successful, this could have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and operating results.

The terms of current and proposed European Union Directives could restrict WGM and thus our business and
implementation of those Directives could place a significant demand on our resources.

WGM must comply with the pan-European regime established by the MiFID 2004/39/EC, which became effective on
November 1, 2007, and regulates the provision of investment services and activities throughout the EEA.
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CYSEC sets out detailed requirements governing the organization and conduct of business of investment firms and
regulated markets. It also includes best execution obligations, appropriateness tests, client categorization procedures,
pre- and post-trade transparency requirements for equity markets and extensive transaction reporting requirements.
Cyprus has adopted those MiFID requirements into national legislation and the CYSEC Rules, as have those other
EEA jurisdictions in which we have a presence. The withdrawal or removal of any country from the EEA would
remove that country from the operation of MiFID, which could adversely affect our ability to offer our Trading
Platform to customers in that jurisdiction.

In the aftermath of the financial crisis, the European Commission set out a detailed plan for European Union financial
services regulatory reform, outlining a number of initiatives to be reflected in new or updated directives, regulations
and recommendations. If and when implemented, these will have direct and indirect effects on our operations in the
EEA. In particular, a review of MiFID by the European Commission has led to the publication of a draft amended
Directive and a draft new Markets in Financial Instruments Regulation and Markets in Financial Instruments Directive
(known as “MiFID 2”). The proposals, if implemented, could have wide ranging and significant implications for WGM.
The implementation of the proposals is not expected until 2015 and at this stage it is not possible to evaluate clearly
their impact on WGM. It is expected, however, that the proposals are likely to increase our compliance burden and
regulatory risks.

European Market Infrastructure Regulation (“EMIR”) became effective on August 15, 2012. Under EMIR, WGM has an
obligation to report its derivatives trades to a trade repository. This obligation is a mandatory requirement by CYSEC
where its implementation needs to be done with no delays; CYSEC can proceed with fines if any of the investment
firms have not implemented it. EMIR became a requirement on January 1, 2014, and it is likely to result in higher
compliance costs for WGM.

The European Commission has also published proposals to replace the Directive of the European Parliament on
insider dealing and market manipulation (2003/6/EC) with a regulation on insider dealing and market manipulation
with an accompanying Directive on criminal sanctions. There are also ongoing plans to reform the framework to
which regulated firms are subject, including in relation to regulatory capital and the protection of client assets, which
will have a direct effect on our EEA operations.

The implementation of any such changes could place a significant demand on our management, compliance and
information technology resources and could divert them from the normal operation of our business or the expansion of
our business. Further, once implemented, such changes could have a material adverse effect on our future operations
and consequently on our business, financial condition and operating results.

The activities of our affiliates under the “OPTION AFFILIATES” program could give rise to legal and regulatory risks.

Revenue generated from the “OPTION AFFILIATES” program accounted for approximately 23% during the first six
months of 2014 and for approximately 53% and 14% of our total revenue during the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively, and we consider that it is an integral component of our marketing strategy. As part of the
affiliate registration process, we carry out anti-money laundering checks on potential affiliates but do not otherwise
vet or restrict prospective affiliates from joining the program. Further, once an affiliate has signed up to the program,
we have no automated mechanism through which we can monitor or control our affiliates’ activities but instead carry
out manual checks. These factors could expose us to risks associated with the activities of affiliates who advertise our
brand (including in connection with bribery and corruption). Should an affiliate use our brand name in a manner
which is unauthorized by us, this could give rise to reputational and legal risks, which in turn could have a material
adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition and operating results. In the event that such activity
becomes known to us, such affiliate is immediately removed from our programs.
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We must comply with data protection and privacy laws.

Our operations are subject to a number of laws relating to data privacy. The requirements of these laws may affect our
ability to collect and use personal data and also to plant and use cookies in a way that is of commercial use to us, if we
do not ensure our adherence to appropriate compliance procedures. Breach of data privacy legislation could result in
us being subjected to claims from our customers that we have infringed their privacy rights, and we could face
administrative proceedings (including criminal proceedings) initiated against us by the data protection regulator of the
relevant jurisdiction in which we operate. In addition, any inquiries made, or proceedings initiated by, individuals or
any of such regulators may lead to negative publicity and potential liability for us, which could materially adversely
affect our business.

10
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Risks Related to Our Business Operations

We rely on information technology in our operations, and any material failure, inadequacy, interruption or security
failure of that technology could harm our business.

We rely on information technology networks and systems, including the internet, to process, transmit and store
electronic information, and to manage or support a variety of business processes, including financial transactions,
records, and customers’ personal identifying information. We purchase some of our information technology from
vendors, on whom our systems depend. We rely on commercially available systems, software, tools and monitoring to
provide security for processing, transmission and storage of confidential customer information, such as individually
identifiable information, including information relating to financial accounts. Although we have taken steps to protect
the security of our information systems and the data maintained in those systems, it is possible that our safety and
security measures will not be able to prevent the systems’ improper functioning or damage, or the improper access or
disclosure of personally identifiable information such as in the event of cyber-attacks. Security breaches, including
physical or electronic break-ins, computer viruses, attacks by hackers and similar breaches, can create system
disruptions, shutdowns or unauthorized disclosure of confidential information. Any failure to maintain proper
function, security and availability of our information systems could interrupt our operations, damage our reputation,
subject us to liability claims or regulatory penalties and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Cyber-attacks against us or security breakdowns of us may adversely impact us.

We are susceptible to cyber security risks that include, among other things, theft, unauthorized monitoring, release,
misuse, loss, destruction or corruption of confidential and highly restricted data; denial of service attacks;
unauthorized access to relevant systems, compromises to networks or devices that we use to service our operations; or
operational disruption or failures in the physical infrastructure or operating systems that support us. Cyber-attacks
against us or security breakdowns of us may adversely impact us, potentially resulting in, among other things,
financial losses; our inability to transact business; violations of applicable privacy and other laws; regulatory fines,
penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs; and/or additional compliance costs. We
may incur additional costs for cyber security risk management and remediation purposes. While we have established
risk management systems designed to reduce the risks associated with cyber security, there can be no assurance that
we will not suffer losses relating to cyber-attacks or other information security breaches in the future.

Our inability to protect our proprietary intellectual property could adversely affect our business.

Our proprietary intellectual property is key to our business. Our success depends on our ability to maintain protection
of our intellectual property rights and to operate without infringing the proprietary rights of third parties. We may be
unable to successfully protect our intellectual property rights.

We have not filed any patent or other applications or registrations covering our software. Therefore, we seek to
protect the proprietary software developed by our employees (in the course of their employment with our Company)
by including relevant provisions in their employment contracts. However, we cannot guarantee that our employees
will not claim intellectual property rights in the works that such employees create.

There is also a risk that third parties may independently design and exploit software similar to the software developed
by us without infringing our intellectual property rights, but with a material adverse effect on our business and
profitability, or that our competitors as well as other companies and individuals may obtain and may have obtained
intellectual property rights related to technologies for trading the types of products and providing the type of
services we offer or plan to offer and that our intellectual property rights will not have priority over such third parties’
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rights. If it were to be found, by a court or otherwise, that an employee or other third party is the rightful owner of
intellectual property used by us or that one or more of our products or services infringe intellectual property rights
held by others, we may be required to stop developing or marketing relevant products or services, stop using the
relevant intellectual property, obtain licenses to use the relevant intellectual property or develop or market the
products or services, pay royalties and/or damages to the employee or other third party holding the relevant
intellectual property rights, and/or redesign the relevant products or services in such a way as to avoid infringement,
any of which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. Any claim
against us in relation to ownership or infringement of intellectual property, even if it lacks merit, could result in
expensive and/or time-consuming litigation and/or negotiations.

A reduction in the availability of credit cards as a payment alternative for our customers could damage our business.
We currently accept credit and debit card payments from customers. It is possible that in future, major card issuing
institutions may restrict the use of credit and debit cards in respect of online trading of binary options and this may

result in a reduction in the availability of credit cards as a payment alternative for our customers, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

11
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Furthermore, payments by credit card expose our business to the risk of cancelled credit card transactions, which in
the aggregate again could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition and operating
results.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal control over financial reporting, we may not be able to accurately
report our financial results or prevent fraud.

Effective internal control over financial reporting is necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and, together
with adequate disclosure controls and procedures, are designed to prevent fraud. Any failure to implement required
new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation could cause us to fail to meet our
reporting obligations. In addition, any testing by us conducted in connection with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, or any subsequent testing by our independent registered public accounting firm, may reveal deficiencies in our
internal control over financial reporting that are deemed to be material weaknesses or that may require prospective or
retroactive changes to our financial statements or identify other areas for further attention or improvement. Ineffective
internal control could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, which could have a
negative effect on the trading price of our common stock.

Financial risk limitation policies, procedures and practices may not be effective and may leave us exposed to certain
risks.

The design and implementation of our policies, procedures and practices used to identify, monitor and control a
variety of risks may fail to be effective. Our financial risk limitation methods rely on a combination of internally
developed technical controls, industry standard practices, observation of historical market behavior and human
supervision. These methods may not adequately prevent future losses, particularly to the extent they relate to extreme
market movements, which may be significantly greater than the historical measures indicate. The design and
implementation of our financial risk limitation procedures and practices have in the past been, and going forward will
be, subject to human error, technological failure and fraud. There can be no assurance that we will set financial risk
limitation parameters accurately, that our testing and quality control practices will be effective in preventing technical
software or hardware failure or that our employees will accurately and appropriately apply our financial risk limitation
procedures. Any failures in this regard could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial
condition and operating results.

We are also exposed to potential losses due to fraud and other misconduct by customers. For example, customers or
people impersonating customers may engage in fraudulent activities, including improper use of legitimate customer
accounts and the use of a false identity to open an account (as has occurred in the past). Such activities may be
difficult to prevent or detect and the provisions of our customer agreements and other contractual arrangements that
are intended to protect us against such risks and losses may fail to be effective. We may not be able to recover the
losses caused by such activities or events and any such losses could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results.

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Our functional currency is U.S. Dollar. We generate our revenues in a variety of currencies, including the EURO,
Sterling, Ruble, Swedish Krona, Brazilian Real and Chinese Yuan. As a result, some of our financial assets are
denominated in these currencies and fluctuations in these currencies could adversely affect our financial results. We
do not currently engage in any currency hedging transactions intended to reduce the effect of fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates on our results of operations. If we were to determine that it was in our best interests to enter
into any currency hedging transactions in the future, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so or that
such transactions, if entered into, will materially reduce the effect of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates
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on our results of operations. In addition, if, for any reason, exchange or price controls or other restrictions on the
conversion of one currency into another currency were imposed, our business could be adversely affected. Although
exposure to currency fluctuations to date has not had a material adverse effect on our business, there can be no
assurance such fluctuations in the future will not have a material adverse effect on revenues from international sales
and, consequently our business, operating results and financial condition.

We may not be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors.

The binary options industry is new, rapidly evolving and will likely become intensely competitive. Currently, we
compete with a small number of operators, some of which have similar product offerings. Some of our competitors
may have greater financial, marketing and other resources than us which may enable them to better compete with us.
Our competitors may be able to offer more favorable terms and may also adopt more aggressive pricing or

promotional policies than us, which may hinder our ability to quickly penetrate the market and grow our business.

12

27



Edgar Filing: EZTrader Inc. - Form 10-12G

We are dependent for our revenue and profits on trading volume from binary options. If the market for binary options
does not grow in accordance with our expectation, the future growth and expansion of us may not be successful. For
example, should a change of law or regulation in any of the jurisdictions in which we operate mean that restrictions of
a material nature are imposed in respect of trading in binary options (in the same way as, for example, gambling
contracts are restricted or prohibited in certain jurisdictions) this could significantly reduce the market for binary
options in the relevant countries. Any such decline in the market for binary options which is significant would have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

If we are not able to manage growth of our business, our financial condition and results of operations will be
negatively affected.

We believe that rapid growth and expansion could cause significant strains on our managerial, operational, financial
and other resources. Any failure to manage the anticipated growth and expansion of our business could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition.

Political and economic events may harm our operations.

Ongoing financial instability has had, and may continue to, have a material adverse effect on the world economy,
consumers and financial market participants. These or similar events have in the past increased or prolonged, and may
in the future increase or prolong, negative economic conditions which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and operating results.

We generate the majority of our revenue from customers in the EEA, which in aggregate accounted for 64.8% and
21.6% of our revenue for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The occurrence of any negative
political or economic events within the EEA could result in significant revenue shortfalls which could cause our
business to be harmed. Such events could include the collapse of the euro as a currency, the break-up of the Eurozone
or the withdrawal or removal of an existing member state from the EEA.

We depend on our senior management team, and if we are unable to retain our current personnel and hire additional
personnel, our ability to implement our growth strategy and compete in our industry could be harmed.

Our future growth and success depends, in part, upon the leadership and performance of our CEO, Mr. Shimon Citron,
who has significant experience in the online marketing and would be difficult to replace. We are highly dependent on
the continued services of the CEO. The agreements in place with certain members of our management team (including
the agreements with, or in respect of the services provided by, the CEO) allow the relevant individual to resign from
our Company upon between 30 to 90 days' notice. The loss of any members of the senior management team or other
key employees, the inability to recruit sufficient, qualified personnel, or the inability to replace departing employees in
a timely manner could have a material adverse effect on our ability to run our business and, accordingly, on our
financial condition and operating results.

In order to compete effectively, we must keep up with rapid technological changes and changes in our customers’
requirements and preferences.

The online trading industry is characterized by rapid technological changes and evolving industry standards.
Customers constantly demand more sophisticated products and services and customer preferences change rapidly. To
remain competitive, we must continue to innovate, further enhancing and improving the responsiveness, functionality,
accessibility and other features of our Trading Platform. Our success depends on our ability to anticipate and respond
to technological changes and customer preferences in a timely and cost-effective manner. We believe that we are well
placed to respond to these challenges bearing in mind that key technologies are developed in-house allowing us to
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respond to changes in customer preferences quickly and efficiently. However, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to effectively anticipate and respond to technological changes and customer preferences in the future.

Failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

We are partially dependent on third parties, including infrastructure suppliers, data providers and data sources, and
online marketing service providers.

Our business depends on the capacity and reliability of our network infrastructure, to a certain extent provided by third
party suppliers such as telecommunications operators that transmit our traffic over local and wide area networks and
the internet. If any of these suppliers were unable to fulfill the terms of their contracts for any reason or if they
terminated their contracts with us and we could not replace them with alternative suppliers in a timely fashion and on
favorable commercial terms, it could impair the quality of, or make it impossible for us to deliver, our own products
and services. Any such event could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating
results.
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In addition, we are dependent upon third party data providers and, in some cases, underlying data sources such as
stock and commodities exchanges, to supply real-time market prices and other information necessary for the operation
of our business in consideration for license fees paid to them by us. There is no guarantee that any of these providers
or underlying data sources will be able to adequately expand these services to meet our needs or to continue to provide
these services in an efficient and cost-effective manner going forward. In addition, there is no guarantee that current
license fees are any indication of the future fees that may be levied by such providers or underlying data sources, and
going forward, there may be material increases in current license fees, an imposition of new license fees, a refusal to
grant a license or restrictions may be imposed by these providers of information. Any such occurrences, or any
termination of a contract by a third party data provider or data source, could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and operating results (and certain third party data providers or data sources are able to
terminate their arrangements with us on very short notice periods).

We are reliant on third parties to provide online marketing services. Any increase in the cost of online marketing
channels, or termination of a contract by one of the few key providers of online marketing services to us (such as
Google), including as a result of a breach of contract by us, could adversely affect our ability to achieve our
advertising objectives and consequently our business, financial condition and operating results.

We may suffer losses if our reputation is harmed.

Our ability to attract and retain customers and employees may be materially adversely affected to the extent our
reputation is damaged. Issues that may give rise to reputational risk include, but are not limited to, failure to deal
appropriately with legal and regulatory requirements in any jurisdiction (including as may result in the issuance of a
warning notice or sanction by a regulator or the commission of an offense (whether civil, criminal, regulatory or
other) by us or any of our officers, directors, or employees), money-laundering, bribery and corruption, factually
incorrect reporting, staff difficulties, fraud (including on the part of customers), technological delays or malfunctions,
the inability to respond to a disaster, privacy, record-keeping, sales and trading practices, and the credit, liquidity and
market risks inherent in our business and our activities. For example, we have from time to time received complaints
from customers who are dissatisfied with certain our aspects. If we fail, or appear to fail, to deal with or settle any
such complaints effectively or deal with other issues that may give rise to reputational risk or if we fail to retain
customers for any other reason, it could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition
and operating results.

Material customer complaints could result in incurring significant costs by us or requiring us to pay a high level of
compensation to the relevant customer, or could affect our reputation, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on our business or operations.

The activities of individuals or entities attempting to pass themselves off as associated with us, or otherwise falsely
advertising or promoting us, could cause reputational damage to us, which could impact our business, financial
condition and operating results.

The terms on which we have contracted with certain customers, affiliates and suppliers may not be standard.

Due to our fast-growing nature, the terms on which we have contracted with customers, affiliates and suppliers have
differed over time and therefore the contracts in place with certain customers, affiliates and suppliers are not on
standard terms. In some cases, the relevant contract is not clear, may be unfair or onerous on the counterparty, does
not limit our liability, allows the counterparty to terminate its arrangement with us on a very short notice period, does
not allow us adequate flexibility regarding termination of our arrangement with the counterparty and/or contains an
indemnity from us in favor of the counterparty. The terms of these contracts, claims against us under these contracts or
the termination of any of these contracts by the relevant counterparty could adversely affect our business, financial
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condition and operating results.
Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our officers and directors beneficially own 9.6% of our outstanding common stock, warrants and granted options.
Accordingly, it may be more difficult for our outside stockholders to significantly influence matters that are voted
upon by our stockholders, including the election of directors.

As of August 31, 2014, our officers and directors beneficially owned 9.6% of our issued and outstanding stock on a
fully diluted basis. We do not have cumulative voting in the election of directors. Thus, it may be more difficult for
purchasers of our common stock to affect the election of any directors to our Board of Directors (“Board”) and any other
matters upon which stockholders may vote in the future.

The limited market for our shares will make our stock price more volatile. Therefore, you may have difficulty selling
your shares.

The market for our common stock is limited and we cannot assure you that a larger market will ever be developed or
maintained. Currently, our common stock is quoted on the OTC Pink. We expect that our common stock will be
quoted on the OTCQB following the effectiveness of this Registration Statement on Form 10. Securities quoted on the
OTCQB typically have low trading volumes. Market fluctuations and volatility, as well as general economic, market
and political conditions, could reduce our market price. As a result, this may make it difficult or impossible for our
stockholders to sell our common stock. In addition, unlike NASDAQ and the various international stock exchanges,
there are few corporate governance requirements imposed on OTCQB-quoted companies.
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Our common stock is subject to the “penny stock” rules of the SEC, and the trading market in our common stock is
limited. This makes transactions in our common stock cumbersome and may reduce the value of your shares.

The SEC has adopted Rule 3a51-1 under the Exchange Act which establishes the definition of a “penny stock,” for the
purposes relevant to us, as any equity security that has a market price of less than $5.00 per share or with an exercise
price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. For any transaction involving a penny stock, unless
exempt, Rule 15g-9 under the Exchange Act requires:

. that a broker or dealer approve a person’s account for transactions in penny stocks; and

ethe broker or dealer receive from the investor a written agreement to the transaction, setting forth the identity and
quantity of the penny stock to be purchased.

In order to approve a person’s account for transactions in penny stocks, the broker or dealer must:
o obtain financial information and investment experience objectives of the person; and

*make a reasonable determination that the transactions in penny stocks are suitable for that person and the person has
sufficient knowledge and experience in financial matters to be capable of evaluating the risks of transactions in
penny stocks.

The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior to any transaction in a penny stock, a disclosure schedule prescribed by
the SEC relating to the penny stock market, which, among other things:

o sets forth the basis on which the broker or dealer made the suitability determination; and
e that the broker or dealer received a signed, written statement from the investor prior to the transaction.

Generally, brokers may be less willing to execute transactions in securities subject to the “penny stock” rules. This may
make it more difficult for investors to dispose of our common stock and cause a decline in its market value.

Disclosure also has to be made about the risks of investing in penny stocks in both public offerings and in secondary
trading and about the commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and the registered representative, current
quotations for the securities and the rights and remedies available to an investor in cases of fraud in penny stock
transactions. Finally, monthly statements have to be sent disclosing recent price information for the penny stock held
in the account and information on the limited market in penny stocks.

Risks of Doing Business in Israel

Our principal offices are located in Israel and the unstable military and political conditions of Israel may cause
interruption or suspension of business operations without warning.

Our principal offices are located in Israel. As a result, we are directly influenced by the political, economic and
military conditions affecting Israel. Since the establishment of the State of Israel in 1948, a number of armed conflicts
have taken place between Israel and its Arab neighbors. In addition, Israeli-based companies and companies doing
business with Israel have been the subject of an economic boycott by members of the Arab League and certain other
predominantly Muslim countries since Israel’s establishment. Any hostilities involving Israel or the interruption or
curtailment of trade between Israel and its trading partners could adversely affect our operations and results of
operations. During July and August 2014 and in November 2012, Israel was engaged in an armed conflict with
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Hamas, a militia group and political party which controls the Gaza Strip, and during the summer of 2006, Israel was
engaged in an armed conflict with Hezbollah, a Lebanese Islamist Shiite militia group and political party. These
conflicts involved missile strikes against civilian targets in various parts of Israel, including areas in which our
employees are located, and negatively affected business conditions in Israel. Any armed conflicts, terrorist activities
or political instability in the region could adversely affect business conditions and could harm our results of operations
and could make it more difficult for us to raise capital. Parties with whom we do business may sometimes decline to
travel to or be prevented from traveling to Israel during periods of heightened unrest or tension, forcing us to make
alternative arrangements when necessary in order to meet our business partners face to face. In addition, the political
and security situation in Israel may result in parties with whom we have agreements involving performance in Israel
claiming that they are not obligated to perform their commitments under those agreements pursuant to force majeure
provisions in such agreements.
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Our commercial insurance does not cover losses that may occur as a result of an event associated with the security
situation in the Middle East. Although the Israeli government has in the past covered the reinstatement value of certain
damages that were caused by terrorist attacks or acts of war, we cannot assure you that this government coverage will
be maintained, or if maintained, will be sufficient to compensate us fully for damages incurred. Any losses or damages
incurred by us could have a material adverse effect on our business. Further, recent political unrest in the Middle East
has intensified and may also impact the relationship between Israel and other countries in the area, including Egypt
and Syria. In addition, there have been increased tensions with Iran in recent months based upon reports regarding the
efforts of Iran to develop a military nuclear capability. Although Israel has entered into various agreements with
certain Arab countries and the Palestinian Authority, and various declarations have been signed in connection with
efforts to resolve some of the economic and political problems in the Middle East, we cannot predict whether or in
what manner these problems will be resolved. Wars and acts of terrorism have resulted in significant damage to the
Israeli economy, including reducing the level of foreign and local investment.

Furthermore, certain of our officers and employees may be obligated to perform annual reserve duty in the Israel
Defense Forces and are subject to being called up for active military duty at any time. All Israeli male citizens who
have served in the army are subject to an obligation to perform reserve duty until they are between 40 and 49 years
old, depending upon the nature of their military service.

Under current Israeli law, we may not be able to enforce covenants not to compete and therefore may be unable to
prevent our competitors from benefiting from the expertise of some of our former employees.

Israeli courts have required employers seeking to enforce non-compete undertakings against former employees to
demonstrate that the former employee breached an obligation to the employer and thereby caused harm to one of a
limited number of legitimate interests of the employer recognized by the courts such as the confidentiality of certain
commercial information or a company’s intellectual property. The provisions of such clauses prohibit our employees, if
they cease working for us, from directly competing with us or working for our competitors. In the event that any of
our employees chooses to work for one of our competitors, we may be unable to prevent our competitors from
benefiting from the expertise of our former employees obtained from us, if we cannot demonstrate to the court that a
former employee breached a legitimate interest recognized by a court and that we suffered damage thereby.

It could be difficult to enforce a U.S. Judgment against our officers, our directors and us.

All of our executive officers and directors are non-residents of the United States, and virtually all of our assets and the
assets of these persons are located outside the United States. Therefore, it could be difficult to enforce a judgment
obtained in the United States against us or any of these persons.

Item 2. Financial Information.

Overview

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes
thereto included elsewhere in this Registration Statement on Form 10. This discussion should not be construed to
imply that the results discussed herein will necessarily continue into the future, or that any conclusion reached herein
will necessarily be indicative of our actual operating results in the future. Such discussion represents only the present
assessment by our management.

Our financial statements are stated in U.S. Dollars (US$) and are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted

accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”).
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This discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results
could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. See “Cautionary Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors” elsewhere in this Registration Statement on Form 10.

Our Business
We are a company which derives its income from offering online trading of binary options. A small percentage of our

income (less than 1%), a remnant of our historical activity, is derived from revenue share in the interactive gaming
industry, through a third party.
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In the course of our activities, we have sustained operating losses. To date, we have not generated sufficient revenues
to achieve an operating income or positive cash flow from operations. As of December 31, 2013, we had a negative
working capital of $3.4 million and an accumulated deficit of $25.8 million. There is no assurance that profitable
operations will be sustained on a continuing basis.

To date, our binary options business has had approximately 32,000 customers, of which approximately 15,000 are
currently active customers. Our binary options’ trading volume for the year ended December 31, 2013 reached
approximately $29,200,000, with a profit (difference between customers’ losses and winnings) of $5,324,274.

Our binary options’ trading volume for the first six months of the year 2014 reached approximately $34,100,000,
with a profit (which is the difference between customers’ losses and winnings) of $7,947,988.

We refer in this discussion to the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, as “2013” and “2012,”
respectively.

We have generated revenues since inception but they were not an adequate source of cash to fund future operations.
Historically, we have relied on private placement issuances of equity, sales of assets and related party loans.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. In connection with the preparation
of the financial statements, we are required to make assumptions and estimates about future events, and apply
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and related disclosures. We base
our assumptions, estimates and judgments on historical experience, current trends and other factors that management
believes to be relevant at the time the consolidated financial statements are prepared. On a regular basis, management
reviews our accounting policies, assumptions, estimates and judgments to ensure that our financial statements are
presented fairly and in accordance with U.S. GAAP. However, because future events and their effects cannot be
determined with certainty, actual results could differ from our assumptions and estimates, and such differences could
be material. The following are our critical accounting policies:

Accounting for stock-based compensation

We account for stock based compensation to employees in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board ASC Topic 718, “Stock Compensation”. We measure and recognize compensation expense for share-based
awards based on estimated fair values on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This option
pricing model requires that we make several estimates, including the option’s expected life and the price volatility of
the underlying stock.

Revenue recognition

Since March 2010, we generate revenues from our binary options business. The online binary options trading business
involves a customer trying to predict the occurrence of a future event that will be settled in a win or lose situation at
expiration or the end of the day. There is only a win or lose situation (binary option) and the gain or loss is recognized
once every hour, or at the end of each day. Thus, each event commences and ends on the same day. The revenues are
principally generated from the margin between winning customers to losing customers. In a winning situation (when
either a higher or a lower strike price has been achieved at the expiration of the underlying asset) the binary option
entitles a customer a fixed return (usually around 75%) in addition to the transaction amount. In a losing situation
(when the customer’s prediction is not fulfilled) the customer loses between 85%-90% of the transaction price. We
recognizes revenues from the binary options on a net basis.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 COMPARED TO SIX MONTHS
ENDED JUNE 30, 2013.

Revenues and Cost of Revenues

During the six months ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013, we mainly generated revenues from our binary options
business.

Total revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by 422% to $7,952,947 from $1,522,543 for the
period of six months ended June 30, 2013. The increase is primarily attributable to the increase of our spending on
customer acquisition costs, improved website and effective marketing to improve brand awareness.

Our cost of revenues consists of compensation costs relating to employees who provide customer service to our
customers, compensation costs relating to our network support staff, the cost of supporting our server and network
infrastructure, and amortization of the software platform acquired on June 2011.

Cost of revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by 143% to $457,158 from $188,433 for the six
months ended June 30, 2013. This increase is attributable to the cost of operating our binary options business,
including employee payroll, clearing fees and additional costs of revenues resulting from the significant growth in our
revenues.
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Sales and Marketing

Our sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of traffic acquisition costs (online media and affiliates), as well as
compensation and related expenses for marketing personnel.

Sales and marketing expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by approximately 1,136% to
$4,649,143 from $378,394 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The significant increase in sales and marketing
expenses is attributable to the expansion of our business and increased marketing efforts, including expenses relating
to employee payroll and payments to media and affiliates.

General and Administrative

Our general and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation and related expenses for executive,
accounting, legal, human resources and administrative personnel, professional fees and other general corporate
expenses.

General and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by 102% to $1,747,515 from
$864,850 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The increase is attributable to an increase in stock-based
compensation expenses due to options granted to employees and directors in 2014, as well as an increase in legal and
other professional fees spent in 2014 in connection with the filing of this Registration Statement on Form 10.

Research and Development

Our research and development expenses consist primarily of compensation and related expenses for our software
development personnel, outsourced labor and expenses for testing new versions of our software.

Research and development expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by 259% to $420,470 from
$117,163 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The increase is attributed to the expenses incurred in connection
with the improvement of our Trading Platform, mainly to the increase in payroll and related expenses of 166%
($258,000 for the six month period ended June 30, 2014 compared to $97,000 for the six month period ended June 30,
2013), as well as to the increase in subcontractors costs during the six month period ended June 30, 2014 of $162,000
compared to $20,000 during the six month period ended June 30, 2013.

Financial expenses

Our financial expenses for the six month period ended June 30, 2014 were $309,435 compared to $126,640 for the six
month period ended June 30, 2013. The increase of 144% in the financial expenses is mainly attributable to the
accrued interest and amortization of discount relating to the convertible loans, obtained by us in October 2013 and
February 2014.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of June 30, 2014, our total current assets were $7,638,247 and our total current liabilities were $8,203,289. On
June 30, 2014, we had an accumulated deficit of $27,102,779. We currently finance our operations through revenues
from our binary options business.

Net cash used in operating activities in the amount of $672,413 during the six months ended June 30, 2014 resulted
primarily from operating our binary options business, and it was spent primarily on marketing expenses and our

employees’ wages.
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Net cash provided from the investing activity during the six months ended June 30, 2014 was $1,119,226, mainly due
to release of the restricted cash of approximately $1.4 million.

Net cash provided by the financing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2014 in the amount of $6,336,525,
resulted primarily from the convertible loans in the net amount of $2.7 million received in February 2014, as well as
private placement in May 2014 in the net amount of approximately $3.7 million.

Net Loss Attributable to the Company

Net loss attributable to the Company for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was $1,307,518 compared to a net loss of
$910,599 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. Net loss per share from operations for the six months ended June
30, 2014 and 2013 was $0.01. Net loss for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was primarily attributable to
the operations of our binary options business which required significant marketing and operational expenses, primarily
consisting of online advertisement of our online trading of binary options sites, and employee related expenses. Our
weighted average number of shares of common stock used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share for the six
months ended June 30, 2014 was 87,031,332 as opposed to 79,843,562 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The
increase in our outstanding shares is mainly attributable to our equity issuances in December 2013 and May 2014, as
described below.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012.

Revenues

Our total revenues for 2013 increased by approximately 148% to $5,340,040 from $2,153,200 in 2012. The increase is
mainly attributable to the increase of our spending on customer acquisition costs, improved website and effective
marketing to improve brand awareness.

We are entitled to royalties from a revenue sharing arrangement upon sublicensing of our products to end-users. We
recognize royalties from revenue sharing arrangements during the period based on reports obtained from our
customers, through the relevant reporting period, on a monthly basis. In 2013 and 2012, revenues from such royalties
amounted to $15,766 and $9,281, respectively, and were a marginal portion of total revenues.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues for 2013 increased by approximately 122% to $680,439 from $306,891 in 2012. The increase is
attributable to the cost of operating of our binary options business, including employee payroll, and additional costs of
sales resulting from the significant growth in the Company’s activity since the acquisition of www.eztrader.com.

Sales and marketing

Sales and marketing expenses for 2013 increased by approximately 77% to $5,397,126 from $3,052,581 for 2012. The
increase in sales and marketing expenses is attributable to marketing expenses, primarily consisting of online
advertisement of our online trading of binary options sites.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses for 2013 increased by 50% to $1,930,176 from $1,200,171 for 2012. The
increase in general and administrative expenses is primarily attributable to an increase in maintenance expenses as
well as an increase in payroll and related expenses resulting from the significant growth in the Company’s activity.

Research and Development

Research and development costs increased by 174% in 2013 to $332,109 from $121,282 in 2012. The increase in our
spending on research and development in 2013, as compared to the previous year, resulted from the increase in the
payroll and related expenses of 125% ($273,000 in 2013 compared to $121,000 in 2012) as well as the subcontractors’
costs of $59,000 in 2013 compared to zero in 2012 related to the significant growth in our activity.

Financial Income/Expenses

Financial expense in 2013 amounted to $342,216 as compared to financial income in 2012 which amounted to
$197,157. The change in financial expense versus income is primarily due to currency fluctuations.

Net Loss and Net Loss Per Share
Net loss attributable to us in 2013 increased to $3,342,026 from a net loss of $2,330,568 for 2012. Net loss per share

(basic and diluted) in 2013 increased to $0.04 from a net loss of $0.03 for 2012. The net loss in 2013 and 2012 is
primarily attributable to the significant marketing and operational expenses, primarily consisting of online
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advertisement of our online trading of binary options sites, customer acquisition costs, and other marketing costs to
improve our brand awareness.

Our weighted average number of shares of common stock used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share for
2013 was 82,037,502 compared to 74,026,695 shares for 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2013, our total current assets were $2,377,631 and our total current liabilities were $5,734,511.
At December 31, 2013, we had a negative working capital of $3,356,880 compared with $1,048,178 as of December
31, 2012. As of December 31, 2013, we had an accumulated deficit of $25,795,261. In 2013, we financed our
operations with a combination of revenues and equity issuances, as described below.

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2013 were $175,812, an increase of $112,612 from the $63,200
reported at December 31, 2012. Cash balances increased in 2013 compared to 2012 primarily due to the receipt of
proceeds from convertible loans and issuance of equity securities to the shareholders, offset by the costs of operations
of our binary options business.
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Operating activities used cash of $745,002 in 2013. Cash used by operating activities in 2013 resulted primarily from
the increasing cost of operations of our binary options business.

During 2013, we used $1,426,875 in investing activities, compared to $81,734 used in investing activities in 2012.
Cash used in investing activities in the year ended December 31, 2013 mainly resulted from the restriction of cash of
approximately $1.4 million. The restricted cash in the approximate amount of $1.4 million as of December 31, 2013,
was held for financial institutions in Cyprus to fulfill our regulatory obligations with the CYSEC. In March 2014, we
fulfilled our obligations and such amount was released. Cash used in investing activities in the year ended December
31, 2012 resulted from the purchase of property and equipment and short and long term deposits.

Financing activities provided cash of $2,284,489 and $650,428 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Cash provided by
financing activities in 2013 resulted primarily from equity issuances which amounted to $829,500, as well as receipt
of proceeds from convertible loans in the net amount of $1,418,785. Cash provided by financing activities in 2012
resulted primarily from equity issuances which amounted to $634,000.

On November 8, 2012, we entered into securities purchase agreements with certain investors pursuant to which we
sold our shares of our common stock (the “Shares”) and issued warrants (the “Warrants”) to purchase Shares (the
“Transaction”). No separate consideration was paid for these Warrants. These Warrants are exercisable at any time until
November 8, 2014. The aggregate net proceeds from the sale of the Shares and the issuance of the Warrants amounted
to $379,000. Out of such proceeds, an amount of $108,000 was set-off against two outstanding loans, each in the
amount of $54,000, provided to us in August 2012 by Mr. Shimon Citron, our CEO and one of our directors, and Mr.
Ron Lubash, one of our directors. Following the Transaction, Mr. Citron received 540,000 of the Shares for total
consideration of $54,000, and was issued 54,000 of the Warrants. Following the closing of the Transaction, Ricx
Investments Ltd., one of our major shareholders (“Ricx”), received 2,500,000 of the Shares for total consideration of
$250,000, and was issued 250,000 of the Warrants. At the closing of the Transaction, Mr. Lubash held approximately
twelve percent of the outstanding equity interests of Ricx. The total $250,000 consideration paid by Ricx excludes Mr.
Lubash’s $54,000 aforementioned set-off amount.

On March 5, 2013, we issued an aggregate of 1,368,920 shares of our common stock in connection with the exercise
of 899,387 warrants at the price per share equal to $0.0595, for a total amount of $53,513 to Mr. Shimon Citron.
These warrants were issued in connection with the March 2008 convertible debt transaction.

On May 12, 2013, we entered into a finance agreement with Activa Red Green, Ltd., pursuant to which we borrowed
an amount of $100,000 with a maturity date on May 11, 2014. This loan bore an annual interest of 20% and was fully
repaid in May 2014.

On June 12, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with Ricx, pursuant to which we sold to Ricx
4,295,220 shares of restricted common stock ("Ricx's Shares") of the Company at a price of $0.10 per share, and
issued a warrant to purchase 859,044 shares of common stock (the "New Warrant") of the Company at an exercise
price per share of $0.10. No separate consideration was paid for the New Warrant. The New Warrant expires on June
12, 2016. The net proceeds from the sale of Ricx's Shares and the issuance of the New Warrant amounted to $429,522.
The transaction closed on June 12, 2013.

On October 29, 2013, we entered into a convertible loan agreement with certain Lenders, according to which, we
borrowed from the Lenders a total amount of $1,391,000. This loan matures on October 29, 2014, and bears an annual
interest of 10% to be repaid in a lump sum on such maturity date. This loan is convertible into "Conversion Units"
which in total include 7,291,534 shares of our common stock, and warrants exercisable into 729,151 shares of our
common stock each at a strike price of $0.19078 for a period of 18 months after issuance. The Lenders are entitled to
require that this loan be repaid by delivering a 21 days prior written notice to the Company. In such case the Company
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is obligated to repay the principal of this loan and the interest accrued until such date.

On December 10, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain investors, pursuant to which we
issued 1,920,631 shares of our common stock for a total consideration in the amount of $366,418, and a warrant to
purchase 192,063 shares of our common stock at an exercise price per share of $0.19. We have received no additional
consideration for such warrant. This warrant expires on December 10, 2015.

In February 2014, we issued convertible loans to new and existing shareholders for a total consideration of $2.8
million. The principal amount of the loans (but not the accrued interest) is convertible at any time before these loans
mature into 7,963,542 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.35 per share. The loans bear interest at an
annual rate of 10%. The loans and accrued interest mature one year from the date of receipt of the loans, unless
converted earlier by the lender. The lender may elect to extend the maturity for an additional year.
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In May 2014, we entered into a share purchase agreement with certain investors, pursuant to which we issued
7,880,000 shares of our common stock for a total consideration of $3,940,000, and warrants to purchase 788,000
shares of our common stock at an exercise price per share of $0.50. These warrants expire in November 2019. The net
proceeds from the sale of shares and issuance of warrants amounted to $3,717,620 and were recorded in equity. The
transaction closed on June 6, 2014.

We had a negative working capital of $565,042 on June 30, 2014 compared with a negative working capital of
$3,356,880 on December 31, 2013. Cash and cash equivalents on June 30, 2014 were $6,959,150, an increase of
$6,783,338 from the $175,812 reported as of December 31, 2013. The increase in cash is primarily attributable to the
convertible loans in the amount of $2.8 million received in February 2014, as well as private placement in May 2014
in the amount of approximately $3.9 million.

Outlook

We believe that our future success will depend upon our ability to enhance our binary options business. Although our
current anticipated levels of revenues and cash flow are subject to many uncertainties and cannot be assured, we
believe that we have sufficient cash to fund our operations for at least the next 12 months.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of August 31, 2014, we had no off balance sheet arrangements that have had or that we expect would be
reasonably likely to have a future material effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues
or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Item 3. Properties.

Currently, we lease premises located at 6 Yehezkel Koifman Street in Tel-Aviv, Israel. This location consists of
approximately 850 square meters of office space, and the rent is approximately $11,000 per month. The term of our
current lease expires January 31, 2015, with no renewal options. Prior to the expiration of our current lease, we will
find a new office space which will be adequate for our needs for operating our business activities.

We also lease premises located at 12 Themistokli Dervi Street in Nicosia, Cyprus. This location consists of
approximately 70 square meters of office space, and the rent is approximately $700 per month. The term of our
current lease expires on October 31, 2014, with no renewal options. Prior to the expiration of our current lease, we

will find a new office space which will be adequate for our needs for operating our business activities.

We believe that our current office space is adequate for our future needs for operating our business activities.
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Item 4. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

The following table sets forth certain information, to the best of our knowledge, as of August 31, 2014 (unless
provided herein otherwise), with respect to holdings of our common stock by (1) each person known by us to be the
beneficial owner of more than 5% of the total number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of such date; (2)
each of our directors; (3) each of our named executive officers; and (4) all of our directors and our current executive
officers as a group. Beneficial ownership consists of a direct interest in the shares of common stock, except as
otherwise indicated.

Number of  Percentage

shares of shares
beneficially beneficially

Name and address of beneficial owner (1) owned (2) owned (3)
5% BENEFICIAL OWNERS
HV Markets Limited (4) 18,750,000 129 %
P.O. Box 3175
Road Town, Tortola
British Virgin Islands
Ricx Investments Ltd. (5) 26,654,264 184 %
Anemomylos Office Building
8 Michael Karaolis Street
1095 Nicosia
Cyprus
Shimon Citron (6) 8,635,012 6.0 %
OTHER DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS:
Ron Lubash (7) 3,865,426 2.7 %
Gustavo Perrotta (8) 1,150,000 *
Sami Sassoun (9) 66,667 i
All directors and current executive officers as a group (4 persons)(6)(7)(8)(9) 13,717,105 9.6 %

* = Less than 1%

(1) Unless otherwise provided, all addresses are c/o EZTrader, Inc. at the address set forth on the cover page of this
Registration Statement on Form 10.

(2) Except as otherwise indicated, all shares are beneficially owned and sole investment and voting power is held by
the persons named.

(3) Applicable percentages of ownership are based on 94,006,302 shares of our common stock outstanding plus any
common stock equivalents and options or warrants held by such holder, which are exercisable as of August 31, 2014.

(4) Includes warrants to purchase 6,250,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per share. This
information is as of February 16, 2012 and is based solely on a Schedule 13D filed by HV with the SEC on February
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16, 2012. In accordance with the disclosures set forth in such Schedule 13D, HV reports sole voting and dispositive
power over all such shares of common stock.

(5) Includes warrants to purchase 6,250,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.08 per share and
warrants to purchase 250,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per share. This information is as of
November 16, 2012 and is based solely on a Schedule 13D/A filed by Ricx with the SEC on November 16, 2012. In
accordance with the disclosures set forth in such Schedule 13D/A, Ricx reports sole voting and dispositive power over
all such shares of common stock.

(6) Includes options to acquire 1,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.06 per share, warrants to
purchase 840,336 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.0595 per share and warrants to purchase 54,000
shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per share. Also includes options to acquire 10,463,000 shares of

common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per share.

(7) Includes options to purchase 3,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per share, as well
as 2,665,425 owned directly by Mr. Lubash as part of the shares of common stock owned by Ricx Investments Ltd.

(8) Includes options to purchase 3,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per share.

(9) Includes options to purchase 400,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.10 per share and 600,000
shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.35 per share.
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Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers.

As of September 15, 2014, our directors and executive officers, their ages, positions held, and duration of such, were
as follows:

NAME AGE POSITION POSITION SINCE

Shimon Citron 59 Director and Chief 2001
Executive Officer

Sami Sassoun 46 Director and Chief 2014
Financial Officer

Ron Lubash 56 Director 2012
Gustavo Perrotta 48 Director 2012

The principal occupations and business experience of each director and executive officer for at least the past five years
is as follows:

Shimon Citron. Mr. Citron founded the Company in 2001 and was our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and a director
from our inception until May 8, 2007 when he ceased to be CEO. He resumed his position as CEO on June 1,
2008. Mr. Citron has been the CEO and one of our directors since 2008. From 1999 to 2001, Mr. Citron was the
founder and President of Gigi Media Ltd., a private company based in Israel engaged in development of internet
search engines. From 1994 to 1999, he managed his own private investments in a number of startup companies in
Israel. We believe Mr. Citron’s qualifications to sit on our Board include his years of experience in the financial
markets in Israel and globally, as well as his experience in serving as the CEO of a publicly traded entity.

Sami Sassoun. Mr. Sassoun was appointed as our Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) on March 1, 2014 and a director
on June 11, 2014. Since December 2009 Mr. Sassoun has had a private consulting practice focused on raising debt and
equity for private and public companies. Mr. Sassoun has served as the CFO of Brean Murray, an independent
investment bank which provides equity research, corporate finance and advisory investment banking, equity
institutional sales and trading. Mr. Sassoun began his financial career in 1989 with J.H Cohn, a public accounting
firm. Mr. Sassoun holds a B.S Degree in Accounting from Rutgers University and is a Certified Public Accountant.
We believe Mr. Sassoun’s qualifications to sit on our Board include his years of experience in public accounting, as
well as in the financial markets, including his position as the CFO of Brean Murray.

Ron Lubash. Mr. Lubash became one of our directors on March 29, 2012. Mr. Lubash holds an MBA from the Yale
School of Management (1986) and B.Sc. in Civil Engineering from the University of Southern California (1984). Mr.
Lubash has been Co-Founder and joint CEO of Markstone Capital Group since 2004. Mr. Lubash has served on the
board of directors of Netafim Ltd. since 2011 as well as Psagot Investment House since 2009. We believe Mr.
Lubash’s qualifications to sit on our Board include his years of experience in the financial markets, including senior
positions in various firms such as The First Boston Corporation, Credit Suisse First Boston, Lehman Brothers and
others, in Israel and abroad in the capacity of an investment banker.

Gustavo Perrotta. Mr. Perrotta became one of our directors on May 16, 2012. Mr. Perrotta is the Founder and has
been Managing Partner of Hamilton Ventures LLP (“Hamilton Ventures”) since 2009, a London based merchant
banking boutique engaged in private equity and principal investments. Prior to Hamilton Ventures, Mr. Perrotta was a
Managing Director in the London office of Credit Suisse’s Investment Banking Division from 1994 to 2008. Mr.

47



Edgar Filing: EZTrader Inc. - Form 10-12G

Perrotta holds a degree in Economics from the University of Rome “La Sapienza”. We believe Mr. Perrotta’s
qualifications to sit on our Board include his years of investment banking experience in the financial markets,
including senior positions at Credit Suisse and audit experience within the Financial Market Division of Arthur
Andersen from 1991 and 1993 as a senior auditor.

Family relationships

There are no family relationships among any of our directors and executive officers.
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Item 6. Executive Compensation.
Summary Compensation Table

The following summary compensation table sets forth information concerning compensation during 2013 and 2012
for services in all capacities awarded to, earned by or paid to Mr. Citron, our CEO and one of our directors. No other
executive officers who were serving as our executive officers at the end of 2013 received more than $100,000 in total
compensation in 2013, and there were no individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided but for the fact
that the individual was not serving as an executive officer at the end of 2013.

NONEQUITY
NAME AND STOCK OPTION  INCENTIVE
PRINCIPAL SALARY BONUS AWARDS AWARDS PLAN
POSITION YEAR 3 $) $) ($) (1) COMPENSATION($TOTAL ($)
Shimon Citron 2013 244,979 80,000 - 17,342 - 342,321
Chief Executive
Officer 2012 200,000 - - - - 200,000

(1) The dollar value recognized for the stock option award was determined in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC’) Topic 718. For information on the
determination of the fair value of each option granted as of the grant date, and of assumptions made with respect
to the value of option awards, see in this Registration Statement on Form 10, note 10.D. “Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013”.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth information with respect to outstanding equity awards held by our CEO as of
December 31, 2013:

Option awards Stock awards
Equity
incentive
Equity plan
incentive awards:
plan Market

awards: or
Number payout
of value of

unearned unearned
shares, shares,
units or  units or

Number of Number of other other
securities securities Number Market value  rights rights
underlying underlying shares of shares that that
unexercised unexercised Option Option of stock of stock have not have not
options (#) options (#) exercise expiration that have that have vested vested
Name exercisable unexercisable price ($) date  not vestedn(@ vested ($) #) %
1,000,000 - 0.06 - - - -
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2004 Global Share Option Plan

2004 Global Share Option Plan (the “Option Plan”) provides for the grant of stock-based awards to employees, officers
and directors of, and consultants or advisors to, the Company and any of its present or future parents, subsidiaries or
affiliates. The Option Plan has been approved by the Board, including its extension until 2024. The Option Plan is
included as Exhibit 10.1 to this Registration Statement on Form 10.

Under the Option Plan, we may grant stock options, restricted stock and other stock-based awards. As of December
31, 2013, a total of 12,915,261 shares of our common stock may be issued upon the exercise of options or other
awards granted under the Option Plan.

The Option Plan is administered by the Board. Subject to the provisions of the Option Plan, the Board has the
authority to select the persons, to whom awards are granted and determine the terms of each award, including the
number of shares of our common stock subject to the award. Payment of the exercise price of an award may be made
in cash, in a “cashless exercise” through a broker, or if the applicable stock option agreement permits, shares of our
common stock or by any other method approved by the Board. Unless we permitted otherwise, awards are not
assignable or transferable except by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

Upon the consummation of an acquisition of the business of the Company, by merger or otherwise, the Board shall, as
to outstanding awards (on the same basis or on different bases as the Board shall specify), make appropriate provision
for the continuation of such awards by the Company or the assumption of such awards by the surviving or acquiring
entity and by substituting on an equitable basis for the shares then subject to such awards either (a) the consideration
payable with respect to the outstanding shares of our common stock in connection with the acquisition, (b) shares of
stock of the surviving or acquiring corporation or (c) such other securities or other consideration as the Board deems
appropriate, the fair market value of which (as determined by the Board in its sole discretion) shall not materially
differ from the fair market value of the shares of our common stock subject to such awards immediately preceding the
acquisition. In addition to or in lieu of the foregoing, with respect to outstanding stock options, the Board may, on the
same basis or on different bases as the Board shall specify, upon written notice to the affected optionees, provide that
one or more options then outstanding must be exercised, in whole or in part, within a specified number of days of the
date of such notice, at the end of which period such options shall terminate, or provide that one or more options then
outstanding, in whole or in part, shall be terminated in exchange for a cash payment equal to the excess of the fair
market value (as determined by the Board in its sole discretion) for the shares subject to such options over the exercise
price thereof.

The Board may at any time provide that any stock options shall become immediately exercisable in full or in part, that
any restricted stock awards shall be free of some or all restrictions, or that any other stock-based awards may become
exercisable in full or in part or free of some or all restrictions or conditions, or otherwise realizable in full or in part, as
the case may be.

The Board may, in its sole discretion, amend, modify or terminate any award granted or made under the Option Plan,
so long as such amendment, modification or termination would not materially and adversely affect the participant.

Director Compensation

The following table sets forth information with respect to the compensation of our directors (other than Mr. Citron,
who did not receive separate compensation for his service as a director) as of December 31, 2013:

Name Fees earned Stock Option All other Total ($)
or paid in awards ($) compensation
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cash ($) awards ($) $)
(D
Gustavo Perrotta 80,000 20,134 - 100,134
Adiv Baruch - 3,468 - 3,468
Ron Lubash 80,000 35,433 - 115,433

(1) The dollar value recognized for the stock option award was determined in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718.
For information on the determination of the fair value of each option granted as of the grant date, and of
assumptions made with respect to the value of option awards, see Item 2 “Financial Information” beginning on
page 16 of this Registration Statement on Form 10 and note 10.D. “Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2013” of this Registration Statement on Form 10.

25

52



Edgar Filing: EZTrader Inc. - Form 10-12G

Consulting, Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements.

On September 23, 2008, we entered into a consulting agreement (the “Citron Consulting Agreement”) with Citron
Investments Ltd. (the “Consultant”), an Israeli corporation wholly owned by our director and CEO, Mr. Citron. Pursuant
to the Citron Consulting Agreement, we retained the services of the Consultant to provide the services of Mr. Citron
as our CEO in a part time capacity. Pursuant to the Citron Consulting Agreement, we are required to pay the
Consultant a monthly fee of $10,000 (the “Monthly Fee”), and will reimburse expenses incurred by the Consultant in
connection with one automobile owned and operated by the Consultant not to exceed $1,000 per month and shall
include Mr. Citron in our liability insurance program for officers and directors (“Automobile Expenses”). In addition,
under the terms of the Citron Consulting Agreement, should our valuation based on the price per share of our shares as
quoted on the stock exchange or on an automatic quotation system (such as the OTCQB) in which our shares are listed
or quoted, during the term of the Citron Consulting Agreement, exceed $10,000,000 throughout a continuous period
of at least 30 consecutive days, then the Consultant shall be entitled to receive from us a special bonus equaling 2% of
the average of our valuation in such 30-day period. The Citron Consulting Agreement can be terminated by either
party for no reason with a 90-day advance written notice or for a material breach with a 14-day advance written notice
if such a breach was not cured during the aforesaid 14-day period.

On December 9, 2010, we and the Consultant amended the Citron Consulting Agreement (the “Amendment”). The
Amendment amended the compensation terms of Mr. Citron as follows: (i) Mr. Citron received from us a special
discretionary bonus for the year 2010 in the amount of $84,000. Such bonus was granted for our performance and for
performing services for us on a full time capacity during 2010, notwithstanding the fact that the Citron Consulting
Agreement provides that Mr. Citron should devote 25 hours per week for the provision of such services. The bonus
was paid based on our cash flow; (ii) effective January 1, 2011, the annual fee to Mr. Citron, for providing us services
on a full time basis, was set at $200,000; and (iii) Mr. Citron was entitled to receive a recurring annual bonus in the
amount of $50,000 subject to meeting our goals as such goals shall be determined by our Board in the annual budget.

On October 31, 2013, we entered into an Addendum to the Citron Consulting Agreement whereby, effective as of
January 1, 2013, the Monthly Fee was raised to $20,000 totaling $240,000 per year, and the Automobile Expenses to
$1,150 per month. We have also agreed that, commencing on August 1, 2013 and as long as the Agreement will be in
effect, the Consultant shall be entitled to receive from the Company, in addition to the other payments under the
Agreement, a monthly bonus equal to 1.25% of the Net Deposits (as defined below) that shall be generated during
such month. Such amount shall be calculated and payable on a monthly basis together with the Monthly Fee.

The term "Net Deposits" means, with respect to each calendar month, the aggregate deposits that shall be made into
the Trading Platform during such month, less all the withdrawals that shall be made from the Trading Platform during
such month less transaction fees (such as processing fees and banking fees) and less charge-backs made during such
month with respect to funds deposited into the Trading Platform.

In addition, on November 1, 2013 we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Shimon Citron to continue to
serve as our CEO with an annual compensation of $130,000, in addition to the fees payable under the Citron
Consulting Agreement as amended.

As of December 31, 2013, we had outstanding management fees and payroll expenses to be paid to Mr. Citron
(personally and through his private company), in the aggregate amount of approximately $168,000.

Effective March 1, 2014, we appointed Mr. Sami Sassoun as our Chief Financial Officer. We entered into an
employment agreement with Mr. Sassoun on March 1, 2014, pursuant to which Mr. Sassoun is being paid an annual
salary of $120,000. In addition, Mr. Sassoun was granted 400,000 options to purchase shares of common stock of our
company at the exercise price of $0.10 per share in accordance with the terms of our equity compensation plan.
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Other than Messers Citron and Sassoun, neither of our executive officers has an employment contract or
change-in-control arrangement, other than stock and option awards that contain certain change-in-control provisions
such as accelerated vesting due to an acquisition. In the event an acquisition that is not a private transaction occurs
while the optionee maintains a business relationship with us and the option has not fully vested, the option will
become exercisable for 100% of the then number of shares as to which it has not vested and such vesting will occur
immediately prior to the closing of the acquisition.

The stock and option awards that would vest for each named executive officer if a change-in-control were to occur are
disclosed under our Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table. Our stock and option awards contain
certain change-in-control provisions. Descriptions of those provisions are set forth below:

Stock Awards Change-in-Control Definition

Change-in-Control shall mean (a) the acquisition in a transaction or series of transactions by any person (such term to
include anyone deemed a person under Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act), other than the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any employee benefit plan or related trust of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, of beneficial
ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act) of 50% or more of the combined
voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of
directors; provided a Change-in-Control shall not occur solely as the result of an initial public offering or (b) the sale
or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company in one transaction or series of related
transactions.

Option Awards Change-in-Control Definition

In the event an acquisition that is not a private transaction occurs while the optionee maintains a business relationship
with the Company and the option has not fully vested, the option shall become exercisable for 100% of the then
number of shares as to which it has not vested, such vesting to occur immediately prior to the closing of the
acquisition. For these purposes, acquisition means the sale of the Company by merger in which the stockholders of
the Company in their capacity as such no longer own a majority of the outstanding equity securities of the Company
(or its successor); or (ii) any sale of all or substantially all of the assets or capital stock of the Company (other than in
a spin-off or similar transaction) or (iii) any other acquisition of the business of the Company, as determined by the
Board. A business relationship means service to the Company or its successor in the capacity of an employee, officer,
director or consultant, and a private transaction means any acquisition where the consideration received or retained by
the holders of the then outstanding capital stock of the Company does not consist of (i) cash or cash equivalent
consideration, (ii) securities which are registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”), or any successor
statute or (iii) securities for which the Company or any other issuer thereof has agreed, including pursuant to a
demand, to file a registration statement within 90 days of completion of the transaction for resale to the public
pursuant to the Securities Act.

Item 7. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Certain relationships and related transactions

Since January 1, 2012, we have participated in the following transactions with our directors, executive officers,
holders of more than 5% of our voting securities, and affiliates or immediate family members of our directors,
executive officers, and holders of more than 5% of our voting securities. We believe that all of these transactions were
on terms as favorable as could have been obtained from unrelated third parties.

Employment and Consulting Agreements
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See Item 5 of this Registration Statement on Form 10 for a description of agreements we have with our named
executive officers or related entities.

Financing Activities
See the section captioned “Liquidity and Capital Resources” under Item 2 of this Registration Statement on Form 10 for

a description of certain financing agreements entered into with certain shareholders and directors.
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Item 8. Legal Proceedings.
Currently we are not a party to any proceedings.

In the ordinary course of business, we may become a party to lawsuits involving various matters. The impact and
outcome of litigation, if any, is subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other matters may
arise from time to time that may harm our business.

Item 9. Market Price of and Dividends on the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.
Market information

Until August 2013, our common stock was quoted on the OTCQB under the symbol “WGMI”. On August 26, 2013, we
filed a Form 15 with the SEC to voluntarily deregister our common stock and suspend our reporting obligations under
the Exchange Act. Currently, our common stock is quoted on the OTC Pink. We expect that our common stock will be
traded on the OTC Bulletin Board following the effectiveness of this Registration Statement on Form 10.

The following table sets forth the range of high and low bid quotations for each quarter within the two most recent
fiscal years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013, and the subsequent interim period, ended June 30,
2014. These quotations as reported on the OTCQB market reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up,
mark-down, or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Period HIGH LOW
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

First Quarter Ended March 31, 2014 $ 025 $ 003
Second Quarter Ended June 30, 2014 $ 023 $ 0.13
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

First Quarter Ended March 31, 2013 $ 0.12 $ 0.02
Second Quarter Ended June 30, 2013 $ 0.12 $ 005
Third Quarter Ended September 30, 2013 $ 0.06 $ 003
Fourth Quarter Ended December 31, 2013 $ 0.04 $ 0.02
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

First Quarter Ended March 31, 2012 $ 0.13 $ 005
Second Quarter Ended June 30, 2012 $ 0.14 $ 0.08
Third Quarter Ended September 30, 2012 $ 0.08 $ 0.06
Fourth Quarter Ended December 31, 2012 $ 0.06 $ 0.02

Holders

As of August 31, 2014, there were approximately 90 holders of record of our common stock. See Item 4 "Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" for information on the holders of our common stock. Also
see Item 11 "Description of Registrant’s Securities to be Registered” for a description of our outstanding and issued
capital stock.

Rule 144

In general, pursuant to Rule 144, under the Securities Act, as currently in effect, a person (or persons whose shares are
aggregated) who is not deemed to have been an affiliate of ours at any time during the three months preceding a sale,
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and who has beneficially owned restricted securities within the meaning of Rule 144 for a least six months (including
certain periods of consecutive ownership of preceding non-affiliated holders) would be entitled to sell those shares,
subject only to the availability of current public information about us. Under Rule 144, a person who is not deemed to
have been one of our affiliates at any time during the 3 months preceding a sale, and who has beneficially owned the
shares proposed to be sold for at least one year is entitled to sell the shares without restriction.

On the other hand, our affiliates or persons selling shares on behalf of our affiliates who own shares that were
acquired from us or an affiliate of ours at least six months prior to the proposed sale are entitled to sell within any
three-month period beginning 90 days after the date of this prospectus, a number of shares that does not exceed the

greater of:

4% of the number of shares of our common stock then outstanding, which as of August 31, 2014, equaled
approximately 940,063 shares of our common stock; or

the average weekly trading volume of our common stock, if and when our common stock is traded on the OTC
Bulletin Board, during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of a notice on Form 144 with respect to the sale.

Sales under Rule 144 are also subject to certain manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and to the
availability of current public information about us for at least 90 days.

Outstanding Common Stock
Under Rule 144, 60,749,047 additional shares of our common stock will qualify for resale under Rule 144 beginning

90 days after the date of the effectiveness of this Registration Statement on Form 10.
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Options

Rule 701 provides that the shares of common stock acquired upon the exercise of currently outstanding options or
other rights granted under our equity plans may be resold by persons, other than affiliates, beginning 90 days after the
date of the effectiveness of this Registration Statement on Form 10, restricted only by the manner of sale provisions of
Rule 144, and by affiliates in accordance with Rule 144 without compliance with its one-year minimum
holding period.

As of August 31, 2014, we had 29,269,667 options outstanding under our equity compensation plan, exercisable into
shares of our common stock, at a weighted average exercise price of $0.11 per share. As of August 31, 2014,
11,191,334 options were exercisable into shares of our common stock, and 18,078,333 options were not exercisable.

We intend to file one or more registration statements on Form S-8 under the Securities Act following the effectiveness
of this Registration Statement on Form 10 to register all shares of our common stock which have been issued or are
issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options or other rights granted under our Option Plan. These registration
statements are expected to become effective upon filing. Shares covered by these registration statements will
thereupon be eligible for sale in the public market, subject in certain cases to vesting of such shares.

Warrants

As of August 31, 2014, there were 22,643,107 outstanding warrants for shares of our common stock issuable at a
weighted average exercise price of $0.10 per share, of which 21,855,107 are exercisable at such date.

Dividend policy

Historically, we have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. However, on February 11, 2011,
our Board adopted a policy pursuant to which we may pay dividends to our stockholders at a rate of up to 50% of our
audited net profits, if any. Dividends will be paid only if lawful under applicable laws and if not in violation of our
financing agreements. Though our Board’s policy sets the maximum rate for such dividends, the amount and timing of
any dividend declared and paid will remain in the discretion of the Board and will depend upon our results of
operations, financial condition and capital requirements, and such other factors deemed relevant by our Board.

We incurred a loss of $2,330,568 and $3,342,026 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively.
2004 Global Share Option Plan

The Option Plan is described in Item 6 “Executive Compensation” beginning on page 24 of this Registration Statement
of Form 10.

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2013, regarding shares of our common stock that may
be issued under the Option Plan:

Plan Category Number of Weighted-average  Number of
securities exercise securities
to be issued price of remaining
upon outstanding available for
exercise of options, future
outstanding warrants and issuance
rights under
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options, equity
warrants compensation
and rights plans
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders—2004
Global Share Option Plan 12,915,261 $ 0.27 12,084,739
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders 0 0 0
Total 12,915,261 $ 0.27 12,084,739
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Item 10. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.
Convertible Loans and Warrants

On October 29, 2013, we entered into a convertible loan agreement with Lenders, according to which, we borrowed
from the Lenders a total amount of $1,391,000. This loan matures on October 29, 2014, and bears an annual interest of
10% to be repaid in a lump sum on such maturity date. This loan is convertible into "Conversion Units" which in total
include 7,291,534 shares of our common stock, and warrants exercisable into 729,151 shares of our common stock
each at a strike price of $0.19078 for a period of 18 months after issuance.

In February 2014, we issued convertible loans to new and existing shareholders for a total consideration of $2.8
million. The principal amount of the loans (but not the accrued interest) is convertible at any time before these loans
mature into 7,963,542 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.35 per share. The loans bear interest at an
annual rate of 10%. The loans and accrued interest mature one year from the date of receipt of the loans, unless
converted earlier by the lender. The lender may elect to extend the maturity for an additional year.

Both transactions have been made pursuant to an exemption from registration under Regulation S under the Securities
Act.

Common Stock and Warrants

On March 5, 2013, we issued an aggregate of 1,368,920 shares of our common stock in connection with the exercise
of 899,387 warrants at the price per share equal to $0.0595, for a total amount of $53,513. These warrants were issued
in connection with the March 2008 convertible debt transaction with Mr. Shimon Citron, our CEO and a director. The
shares were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration under Regulation S under the Securities Act.

On June 12, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with Ricx, pursuant to which we sold to Ricx
4,295,220 shares of restricted common stock of the Company at a price of $0.10 per share, and issued a warrant to
purchase 859,044 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price per share of $0.10. No separate
consideration was paid for the New Warrant. The New Warrant expires on June 12, 2016. The net proceeds from the
sale of Ricx's Shares and the issuance of the New Warrant amounted to $429,522. The transaction closed on June 12,
2013. We have received no additional consideration for such warrant. This warrant expires on June 12, 2016. The sale
of Ricx’s Shares and issuance of the New Warrant were made pursuant to an exemption from registration under
Regulation S under the Securities Act.

On December 10, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain investors, pursuant to which we
issued 1,920,631 shares of our common stock for a total consideration in the amount of $366,418, and a warrant to
purchase 192,063 shares of our common stock at an exercise price per share of $0.19. We have received no additional
consideration for such warrant. This warrant expires on December 10, 2015. The sale of the shares and issuance of the
warrants were made pursuant to an exemption from registration under Regulation S under the Securities Act.

In May 2014, we entered into a share purchase agreement with certain investors, pursuant to which we issued
7,880,000 shares of our common stock for a total consideration of $3,940,000, and warrants to purchase 788,000
shares of our common stock at an exercise price per share of $0.50. These warrants expire in November, 2019. The net
proceeds from the sale of shares and issuance of warrants amounted to $3,717,620 and were recorded in equity. The
transaction closed on June 6, 2014. All of these investors were accredited investors, and such transactions were
exempt from registration under the Securities Act under Section 4(a)(2) and/or Regulation S thereunder.
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No underwriters were involved in the foregoing sales of securities. All purchasers of shares of our convertible loans
and warrants described above represented to us in connection with their purchase that they were accredited investors
and made customary investment representations.

Item 11. Description of Registrant’s Securities to be Registered.

General

The following description of our capital stock is intended as a summary only and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to our articles of incorporation, as amended (‘“‘Articles of Incorporation”), and bylaws filed as exhibits to this
Registration Statement on Form 10 and to Nevada Revised Statutes.

Our authorized capital stock consists of ———— 300,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share.

As of August 31, 2014, we had issued and outstanding 94,006,302 shares of common stock. All outstanding shares of

our common stock are validly issued, fully paid and no assessable.
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Common Stock

Voting Rights. The holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held on all matters submitted
to a vote of the stockholders and do not have any cumulative voting rights.

Dividends. Holders of our common stock are entitled to receive proportionally any dividends declared by our board of
directors.

Liquidation. In the event of our liquidation or dissolution, holders of our common stock are entitled to share ratably in
all assets remaining after payment of all debts and other liabilities.

Rights and Preferences. Holders of our common stock have no preemptive, subscription, redemption or conversion
rights.

Convertible Debentures

As of August 31, 2014, there were 7,291,534 shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of our outstanding
convertible loans at a conversion price of $0.19 per share and 7,963,542 shares of our common stock issuable upon
conversion of our outstanding convertible loans at a conversion price of $0.35 per share.

Options

As of August 31, 2014, we had 29,269,667 options outstanding under our equity compensation plan, exercisable into
shares of our common stock, at a weighted average exercise price of $0.11 per share. As of August 31, 2014,
11,191,334 options were exercisable into shares of our common stock, and 18,078,333 options were not exercisable.

Warrants

As of August 31, 2014, there were 22,643,107 outstanding warrants for shares of our common stock issuable at a
weighted average exercise price of $0.10 per share, of which 21,855,107 are exercisable at such date.

Registration Rights

We are not a party to any registration rights agreements.

Item 12. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

The Nevada Revised Statutes and our bylaws provide for indemnification of our directors and officers for liabilities
and expenses that they may incur in such capacities. In general, directors and officers are indemnified with respect to
actions taken in good faith in a manner reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the
company, and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, actions that the indemnitee had no reasonable cause
to believe were unlawful. Reference is made to our bylaws filed as Exhibit 3.2 hereto.

Our current directors and officers insurance policy expires on February 7, 2015. We have an insurance policy that

covers our directors and officers for all losses arising out of all claims made against any director or officer up to a
combined loss of $3,000,000.

Our bylaws limit the liability of directors to the maximum extent permitted by Nevada Revised Statutes. Nevada
Revised Statutes provide that directors of a corporation will not be personally liable for monetary damages for breach
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of their fiduciary duties as directors, except liability for acts of omissions that are not in good faith or that involve
intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law.

The limitations do not apply to liabilities arising under the federal securities laws and do not affect the availability of
equitable remedies, including injunctive relief or rescission.

Our bylaws provide that we will indemnify our directors and officers, and may indemnify other employees and agents,
to the maximum extent permitted by law. We believe that indemnification under our bylaws covers at least negligence
and gross negligence on the part of indemnified parties. Our bylaws also permit us to secure insurance on behalf of
any officer, director, employee or agent for any liability arising out of actions taken in his capacity as an officer,
director, employee or agent, regardless of whether the bylaws would permit indemnification.
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At present, there is no pending litigation or proceeding involving any of our directors, officers or employees in which
indemnification is sought, nor are we aware of any threatened litigation that may result in claims for indemnification.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers
and controlling persons under the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws or the indemnification agreements we have
entered into with our directors and officers, we have been advised that in the opinion of the SEC this indemnification
is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable.

Our bylaws provide that we must indemnify our directors and officers and that we must advance expenses, including
attorneys' fees, to our directors and officers in connection with legal proceedings, subject to very limited exceptions.
In addition, our bylaws provide that our directors will not be personally liable for monetary damages to us for
breaches of their fiduciary duty as directors, except to the extent that the Nevada Revised Statutes prohibit the
elimination or limitation of liability of directors for breaches of fiduciary duty.

These provisions may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against our directors for breach of their
fiduciary duties. These provisions may also have the effect of reducing the likelihood of derivative litigation against
directors and officers, even though such an action, if successful, might otherwise benefit us and our stockholders. Our
stockholders may lose some or all of their investment in our common stock if we pay the costs of settlement or
damage awards against our directors and officers under these provisions. We believe these provisions, the director and
officer insurance we maintain, and the indemnification agreements we have entered into with our directors and
officers are necessary to attract and retain talented and experienced directors and officers.

Item 13. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The financial statements of EZTrader, Inc., for the periods ended June 30, 2014 and for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, are set forth in Item 15 “Financial Statements and Exhibits” and begin on page F-1 of this
Registration Statement of Form 10.

Item 14. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 15. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Financial Statements

The following Financial Statements are filed as part of this Registration Statement on Form 10:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Consolidated Balance Sheets for the six month period ended June 30, 2014 (unaudited) and for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six month period ended June 30, 2014 (unaudited)
and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the six month period ended June 30, 2014
(unaudited) and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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Statements of Changes in Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six month period ended June 30, 2014 (unaudited)
and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the six month period ended June 30, 2014
(unaudited) and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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EZTRADER, INC.
(FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2014

IN U.S. DOLLARS

UNAUDITED
INDEX
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

U.S. dollars
December
June 30, 31,
2014 2013
Unaudited  Audited
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $6,959,150 $175,812
Short term deposit 2,909 -
Restricted cash 43,630 1,377,672
Receivable from credit card companies 425,095 705,004
Other accounts receivable 207,463 119,143
Total current assets 7,638,247 2,377,631

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

Property and equipment, net 327,110 151,550
Intangible assets - 39,028
Severance pay fund 128,788 79,973
Total non-current assets 455,898 270,551
Total assets $8,094,145 $2.648,182

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

F-2-
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

U.S. dollars

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term bank credit
Obligation to customers
Convertible loans
Accounts payable
Related parties
Accrued expenses and other accounts payable

Total current liabilities
LONG TERM LIABILITIES:
Accrued severance pay

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

EQUITY (DEFICIENCY):

Common stock of $ 0.001 par value:
Authorized: 150,000,000 shares at June 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively;
Issued and outstanding: 84,195,671 and
78,531,531 shares at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively
Additional paid-in capital

Prepayment on account of shares
Accumulated deficit

Equity (deficiency)

Total liabilities and equity

$

June 30,
2014
Unaudited

457 $
2,546,111
4,379,414
272,979

26,009

978,319

8,203,289

192,364

8,395,653

94,997
26,706,274

(27,102,779)
(301,508 )

8,094,145 $

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,
2013
Audited

78,696
2,144,201
1,518,598
327,855
435,143
1,230,018

5,734,511

115,117

5,849,628

84,196
22,163,156
346,463
(25,795,261)
(3,201,446 )

2,648,182
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

U.S. dollars
Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013
Unaudited ($)
Revenues:
Revenues from binary options activity $7,947,988  $1,514,140
Revenues from royalties 4,959 8,403
Total revenues 7,952,947 1,522,543
Operating expenses:

Cost of revenues 457,158 188,433
Selling and marketing 6,325,887 1,136,056
General and administrative 1,747,515 864,850
Research and development 420,470 117,163
Total operating expenses 8,951,030 2,306,502
Operating loss (998,083 ) (783,959 )
Financial expenses, net 309,435 126,640
Net loss before taxes on income (1,307,518) (910,599 )
Taxes on income - -

Net loss $(1,307,518) $(910,599 )
Basic net loss per share $(0.01 ) $(0.01 )

Weighted average number of common stock used in computing basic net loss per share 87,031,332 79,843,562

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

F-4-
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

U.S. dollars

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Total comprehensive income

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

F-5-

Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013

$(1,307,518) $(910,599 )

$(1,307,518) $(910,599 )
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

U.S. dollars

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Stock-based compensation

Depreciation and amortization

Accrued interest and amortization of discount of convertible loans
Decrease (increase) in receivable from credit card companies
Increase in trade and other accounts receivable

Increase (decrease) in trade payables

Increase in obligation to customers and other payables

Increase in severance pay, net

Increase (decrease) in related parties

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment

Decrease in restricted cash

Short term bank deposit

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of shares and warrants
Convertible loans, net

Short-term bank credit, net

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information:

Interest paid

For the
six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013
Unaudited ($)
$(1,307,518) $(910,599
488,835 43,301
75,375 62,114
97,008 -
279,909 (97,564
(20,655 ) (16,500
54,876 ) 213,850
150,210 495,915
28,433 -
(409,134 ) 15,829
(672,413 ) (193,654
(211,907 ) -
1,334,042 -
(2,909 ) 22,716
1,119,226 22,716
3,718,621 483,036
2,696,143 100,000
(78,239 ) (37,448
6,336,525 545,588
6,783,338 374,650
175,812 63,200
$6,959,150 $437,850
$6,603 $-

)

)
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The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 1: GENERAL.:

A.EZTrader, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on April 23, 2002. The
Company is engaged in offering online trading of binary options. The Company's shares were quoted on the
OTCQB in the United States under the symbol "WGMI" from 2010 until August 2013, when the Company
terminated its registration under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and as a result the Company’s
shares are now quoted on the OTC Pink.

The Company conducts its operations and business with and through its subsidiaries, (a) Win Global Markets Inc
(Israel) Ltd., an Israeli company, and (b) WGM Services Ltd., a company registered in Cyprus (“WGM?”).

B.On July 14, 2014 the Company changed its name from Win Global Markets Inc to EZTrader, Inc. (the "Company").

C.The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company
will continue as a going concern. The Company has suffered losses from operations and negative cash flows from
operations since inception. For the period ended June 30, 2014, net loss attributable to the Company was
$1,307,518 and negative cash flows from operations were $672,413.

As of June 30, 2014, obligation to customers amounted to $2,546,111, while current assets were $7,516,178.
Customers may withdraw their deposits upon demand. Despite its negative cash flows, the Company has been able to
secure financing to support its operations to date, based on share issuances amounted to $3.9 million (see also note 5)
and loans amounted to $2.8 million (see also note 4).

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Basis of presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do
not include all the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion
of the Company’s management, the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements contain all
the adjustments necessary (consisting only of normal recurring accruals) to present the financial position of the
Company. Operating results for the six months ended June 30, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results that
may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2014. For further information, reference is made to the
consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2013 included in the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10.

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and all
of its subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

F-7-
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.):
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the results and position of the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its operating
activities. In assessing control, legal and contractual rights are taken into account. The consolidated financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control is achieved
until the date that control ceases. Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated upon consolidation.

Reclassifications
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU No. 2014-08, Presentation of Financial
Statements (Topic 205): Property, Plant, and Equipment, and (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and
Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity. The amendments in this standard change the requirements for
reporting discontinued operations in Subtopic 205-20. The amendments in this update will be effective prospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within those years. The Company
does not expect a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

F-8-
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.):
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements (Cont.):

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from contracts with customers (Topic 606). The core
principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply a five step methodology:
(1) identify the contract(s) with a customer; (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the
transaction price; (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognize
revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. An entity should apply the amendments in this
update using one of the following two methods: (1) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented (along
with some practical expedients); or (2) retrospectively with thecumulative effect of initially applying this update
recognized at the date of initial application. The amendments in this update will be effective prospectively for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this update on its consolidated financial statements.

F-9-
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT:

The accounting guidance establishes a valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the inputs to valuation used to measure
fair value. This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three broad levels as follows:

Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar instruments and quoted prices in markets that are not
active, and inputs that are directly observable or can be corroborated by observable market data. The types of assets
and liabilities included in Level 2 are typically either comparable to actively traded securities or contracts, such as
treasury securities with pricing interpolated from recent trades of similar securities, or priced with models using highly
observable inputs, such as commodity options priced using observable forward prices and volatilities.

Level 3 — Significant inputs to pricing that have little or no observability as of the reporting date. The types of assets
and liabilities included in Level 3 are those with inputs requiring significant management judgment or estimation,
such as the complex and subjective models and forecasts used to determine the fair value of financial instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, are summarized
below:

Fair value measurements using input type
June 30, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $6,959,150 $- $- $6,959,150
Short term deposit 2,909 - - 2,909
$6,962,059 $- $- $6,962,059

Fair value measurements using input type
December 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $175,812 $- $- $175,812
Short term deposit - - - -
$175,812 $- $- $175,812

F-10-
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 4: CONVERTIBLE LOANS:

A.On May 12, 2013, the Company entered into a Finance Agreement with Activa Red Green (the “Lender”), pursuant
to which the Lender loaned to the Company $100,000 with a maturity date of May 11, 2014 (the “Loan”).

The Loan bears annual interest of 20%. In addition, in the event of default and nonpayment the Loan shall bear
additional penalty interest of 4% per annum. The Lender is entitled to convert the loan into shares of common stock
of the Company at a conversion price of $ 0.10 per a share and upon such conversion receive with a warrant to
purchase 1/10 share of common stock at the a price per share of $0.10. The loan was fully paid in May, 2014.

The Company determined that the convertible loan does not fall within the scope of ASC 480-10. The embedded
conversion feature should not be bifurcated in accordance with ASC 815. In addition, the Company followed ASC
470-20 to determine whether a beneficial conversion feature exists at loan inception and came to the conclusion that a
beneficial conversion feature should not be recognized.

B.On October 29, 2013 (the "Closing Date"), the Company entered into a Convertible Loan agreement, according to
which, the lenders will provide a loan in the amount of $1,391,000. The loan bears an annual interest of 10% to be
repaid in one lump sum with the loan principal upon the lapse of one year as of the Closing Date. The lenders may
convert the loan into shares on each of the dates falling upon: (1) the lapse of six (6) months as of the Closing
Date, and (2) the lapse of one (1) year as of the Closing Date. The loan is convertible into "Conversion Units"
which in total include 7,291,534 common shares of the Company, and Warrants exercisable into 729,151 ordinary
shares of the Company each at a strike price of $0.19078 for a period of 18 months after issuance. The lenders are
entitled to require that the loan shall be repaid upon the lapse of six (6) months as of the Closing Date, by
delivering a written notice to the Company at least 21 days prior to such date, and in such case the Company shall
repay the loan (principal and interest accrued until such date) on such earlier date.

The Company determined that the convertible loan does not fall within the scope of ASC 480-10: Distinguishing
Liabilities from Equity (“ASC 480-10"). The embedded conversion feature and the prepayment clause should not be
bifurcated in accordance with ASC 815: Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”). In addition, the Company followed
ASC 470-20: Debt (“ASC 470-20) to determine whether a beneficial conversion feature exists at loan inception and
came to the conclusion that a beneficial conversion feature should not be recognized.

F-11-
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 4: CONVERTIBLE LOANS (CONT.):

The Company recorded issuance costs of approximately $73 thousand, which is amortized using the effective interest
rate of the loan over the loan period. As of June 30, 2014, the deferred issuance costs balance of $24 thousand was
presented in other accounts receivable.

C.On February 13 and 27, 2014, the Company entered into a Convertible Loans Agreement (the "February 2014
Convertible Loans Agreement") with some of its shareholders and new investors (the "Lenders"), in order to raise
an aggregated amount of $2,800,000, The loans are convertible into total of 7,963,542 ordinary shares of common
stock of the Company. The loans amount bears interest at an annual rate of 10%. The Company shall repay the
loan amount and the interest, in one lump sum, on the “Final Repayment Day”, which is 12 months after the Closing
Date or, if extended by the lenders - 24 months from the Closing Date.

The Company determined that the convertible loan does not fall within the scope of ASC 480-10. The embedded
conversion feature and the extension clause should not be bifurcated in accordance with ASC 815. In addition, the
Company followed ASC 470-20 to determine whether a beneficial conversion feature exists at loan inception and
came to the conclusion that a beneficial conversion feature should not be recognized.

The Company recorded issuance costs of approximately $154 thousand, which is amortized using the effective rate of
the loan over the loan period. As of June 30, 2014, the deferred issuance costs balance of $102 thousand was present
in other accounts receivable.

NOTE 5: SHARE CAPITAL:

In May 2014, the Company signed a share purchase agreement with new and existing shareholders for the issuance of
7,880,000 common shares for total consideration of $3,940,000. In addition, the Company issued to the shareholders,
for no additional consideration, 788,000 warrants exercisable into 788,000 shares of common stock at an exercise
price of $0.50 per share, for a period of five years commencing six months after the date of the closing of the
agreement.

The net proceeds from the sale of shares and issuance of warrants amounted to $3,717,620 and were recorded in
equity. The transaction closed on June 6, 2014.

F-12-
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 5: SHARE CAPITAL (CONT.):

The Company accounted for these warrants as equity instruments based on the guidance of ASC 815, "Derivatives and
Hedging", ASC 480-10, "Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity", its related FASB staff positions, ASC 815-40
"Contracts in Entity's Own Stock" and the AICPA Technical Practice Aid for accounting for preferred shares and
warrants, including the roadmap for accounting for freestanding financial instruments indexed to, and potentially
settled in, a company's own stock.

NOTE 6: STOCK BASED COMPENSATION:

The Company accounts for stock based compensation to employees in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, “Stock
Compensation”. The Company measures and recognizes compensation expense for share-based awards based on
estimated fair values on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This option pricing model
requires that the Company make several estimates, including the option’s expected life and the price volatility of the
underlying stock.

The following table shows the total stock-based compensation charges included in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations:

Six months ended

June 30,
2014 2013
Unaudited
General and administrative
expenses $ 488,835 $ 43,301
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EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 6: STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (CONT.):
A summary of the Company’s share option activity to employees and directors, and related information is as follows:

Six months ended June 30,

2014 2013
Unaudited Unaudited
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of options price of options price
$ $
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,915,261  0.27 8,705,261 0.44
Granted* 11,820,000 0.10 2,840,000 0.10
Exercised (10,000 ) 0.10 - -
Forfeited (87,500 ) 0.10 (1,230,000) 0.10
Expired (514,761 ) 0.68 - -
Outstanding at the end of the six month period 24,123,000 0.18 10,315,261  0.39
Options exercisable at the end of the six month period 9,174,667 0.47 8,199,431 0.46

*The fair value of each option granted in 2014 is $0.10 and is estimated on the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: dividend yield of 0% for all years; expected
volatility - 85%; risk-free interest rate - 1.0%; expected life 5 years.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
EZTRADER, INC. (FORMERLY: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL
MARKETS, INC.) (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we

engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of

internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We

believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Tel Aviv, Israel

August 31, 2014
/s/ Ziv Haft
Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)
BDO Member Firm
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

U.S. dollars
Note December 31,
2013 2012

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 175,812 $ 63,200
Short term deposit - 22,716
Restricted cash 1,377,672 -
Receivable from credit card companies 705,004 222,543

Other accounts receivable 4 119,143 4,500
Total current assets 2,377,631 312,959
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Property and equipment, net 5 151,550 120,610
Intangible assets 6 39,028 132,694
Severance pay fund 79,973 -
Total non-current assets 270,551 253,304
Total assets $ 2,648,182 $ 566,263

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

U.S. dollars
Note December 31,

2013 2012
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term bank credit $ 78,696 $ 42492
Obligation to customers 2,144,201 546,850
Accounts payables 327,855 127,968
Related parties 14 435,143 194,475
Accrued expenses and other account payables 7 1,230,018 449,352
Convertible loans 8 1,518,598 -
Total current liabilities 5,734,511 1,361,137
LONG TERM LIABILITIES:
Accrued severance pay 115,117 -
Total liabilities 5,849,628 1,361,137
EQUITY (DEFICIENCY) 10
Common stock of $ 0.001 par value:
Authorized: 150,000,000 shares at December 31, 2013 and 2012
Issued and outstanding: 84,195,671 shares at December 31, 2013
and 78,531,531 shares at December 31, 2012. 84,196 78,532
Additional paid-in capital 22,163,156 21,579,829
Prepayment on account of shares 10 346,463 -
Accumulated deficit (25,795,261) (22,453,235)
Equity (deficiency) (3,201,446 ) (794,874 )
Total liabilities and equity $ 2,648,182 $ 566,263

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

U.S. dollars
Year ended December 31,

Notes 2013 2012
Revenues:
Revenues from binary options business $ 5,324,274 $ 2,143,919
Revenues from royalties 15,766 9,281
Total revenues 5,340,040 2,153,200
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 680,439 306,891
Sales and marketing 5,397,126 3,052,581
General and administrative 12 1,930,176 1,200,171
Research and development 332,109 121,282
Total operating expenses 8,339,850 4,680,925
Operating loss (2,999,810 ) (2,527,725)
Financial income (expense), net 13 (342,216 ) 197,157
Net loss before taxes on income (3,342,026 ) (2,330,568 )
Taxes on income 11 - -
Net loss $ (3,342,026) $ (2,330,568)
Net loss attributable to the Company $ (3,342,026) $ (2,330,568)
Total basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.04 ) $ (0.03 )
Weighted average number of common stock used in computing
basic and diluted net loss per share 82,037,502 74,026,695

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

U.S. dollars
Year ended December 31,
2013 2012
Net income (loss) $(3,342,026) $(2,330,568)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income $(3,342,026) $(2,330,568)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

U.S. dollars

Balance as of December 31,
2011

Stock - based compensation
Net loss

Issuance of shares and
warrants

Balance as of December 31,
2012

Prepayment on account of
shares, net

Issuance of shares and
warrants

Stock - based compensation
Net loss

Balance as of December 31,
2013

Common
stock
Number

62,241,531

16,290,000

78,531,531

5,664,140

84,195,671

Share
capital
Amount

$62,242

16,290

$78,532

5,664

$84,196

Additional
paid-in
capital

Prepayment
on account
of shares

$19,902,820

64,299 -

1,612,710

$21,579,829

- 346,463

477,372 -
105,955 -

$22,163,156 $346,463

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated
deficit

Total

shareholders’

equity

(deficiency)

$(20,122,667) $ (157,605 )

(2,330,568 )

64,299
(2,330,568 )

1,629,000

$(22,453,235) $(794,874 )

(3,342,026 )

346,463

483,036
105,955
(3,342,026 )

$(25,795,261) $ (3,201,446 )
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
U.S. dollars

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Stock-based compensation

Accrued interest and amortization of discount of convertible loans

Decrease (increase) in credit cards companies

Decrease (increase) other account receivables

Increase in trade payables

Increase in obligation to customers and other payables

Increase in severance pay, net

Increase in related parties

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Increase in restricted cash

Short term bank deposit

Long term bank deposit

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Short-term bank credit, net

Convertible loans, net

Issuance of shares, and warrants
Prepayment on account of shares

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,

2013

$(3,342,026)

134,645
105,955
41,418
(482,461 )
(56,248 )
199,887
2,378,017
35,143
240,668
$(745,002 )

$(71,919 )
(1,377,672)
22,716

$(1,426,875)

$36,204
1,418,785
483,037
346,463

$2,284,489

$112,612

$63,200
$175,812

$10,400

2012

$(2,330,568)

488,085
64,299
41,152
18,354
34,694
215,946
194,475
$(1,273,563)

$(95,690 )
(22,716 )
36,672
$(81,734 )
$16,428
634,000
$650,428
$(704,869 )

768,069
$63,200
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 1 - GENERAL:

A.EZTrader, Inc. (formerly: Win Global Markets, Inc.) ("the Company") was incorporated in April 2002 under the
laws of the State of Nevada. The Company is engaged in offering online trading of binary options. The Company's
shares were quoted on the OTCQB in the United States under the symbol "WGMI" from 2010 until August 2013,
when the Company terminated its registration under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and as a
result the Company’s shares are now quoted on the OTC Pink.The Company conducts its operations and business
with and through its active wholly-owned subsidiaries, (a) Win Global Markets Inc (Israel) Ltd., an Israeli
company, and (b) WGM Services Ltd., a company registered in Cyprus (“WGM?”).

B.On July 14, 2014 the Company changed its name from Win Global Markets Inc to EZTrader, Inc. (the "Company").

C.The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue
as a going concern. The Company has suffered losses from operations and negative cash flows from operations
since inception. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the net loss attributable to the Company was $3,342,026
and the negative cash flows from operations were $745,002.

As of December 31, 2013, obligation to customers amounted to $2,144,201, while current assets were $2,377,631.
Customers may withdraw their deposits upon demand.

Despite its negative cash flows, the Company has been able to secure financing to support its operations to date,
based on share issuances amounted to$ 3.9 million and loans amounted to $2.8 million subsequent to balance sheet
date (see also Note 15).

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States (“U.S. GAAP”).

A. Use of estimates:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. The Company's management believes that the estimates, judgments and
assumptions used are reasonable based upon information available at the time they are made. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.):
B. Financial statements in U.S. dollars:

The currency of the primary economic environment in which the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries are
conducted is the U.S. dollar (“dollar”). In addition, a substantial portion of the Company’s revenues and costs are
incurred in dollars. Thus, the functional and reporting currency of the Company is considered to be the dollar. The
functional currency of all subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar, therefore there is no unrealized gain/loss.

Transactions and balances denominated in U.S. dollars are presented at their original amounts. Monetary accounts
maintained in currencies other than the dollar are re-measured into dollars in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification No. 830-10, Foreign Currency Matters. All transaction gains and losses of the re-measurement of
monetary balance sheet items are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as financial income or
expenses, as appropriate.

C. Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. Intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

D. Cash equivalents:

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities
of three months or less, at the date acquired.

E. Short-term bank deposits:

Short-term bank deposits are deposits with maturities of more than three months but less than one year.

F. Restricted cash:

The restricted cash in the approximate amount of $1.4 million at December 31, 2013, is held for financial institutions
in respect of fulfillments of authority obligations in Cyprus. During March 2014, the Company fulfilled its obligations
and the amount was released.

G. Property and equipment:

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method, over the estimated useful lives of the assets, at the following annual rates:

%
Computers and peripheral equipment 33
Electronic devices 15
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease term
or the life of the assets
Office furniture and equipment 6
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.):
H. Intangible assets:
Identifiable intangible assets mainly consist of purchased customer database and software platform.

Intangible assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated amortization. Intangible assets are amortized over their useful
life using the straight-line method.

L Impairment of long lived assets and intangible assets subject to amortization:

Property and equipment and intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment in accordance with
ASC No. 360, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be
held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the future undiscounted cash flows
expected to be generated by the assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized
is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Intangible assets are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets that are not considered to have an
indefinite useful life are amortized over their estimated useful lives.

All other intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
During 2012 and 2013, no impairment losses were recorded.
J. Accounting for stock-based compensation:

The Company accounts for stock based compensation to employees in accordance with ASC 718, Stock
Compensation. The Company measures and recognizes compensation expense for share-based awards based on
estimated fair values on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This option pricing model
requires that the Company make several estimates, including the option's expected life and the price volatility of the
underlying stock. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as an expense
over the requisite service periods in the Company's consolidated statement of operations.

The Company recognizes compensation expenses for the value of its awards, which have graded vesting, based on

the straight line method over the vesting period, net of estimated forfeitures. Estimated forfeitures are based on actual
historical pre-vesting forfeitures.
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.):
J. Accounting for stock-based compensation (Cont.):

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded stock based compensation costs in the
amount of $105,955 and $64,299, respectively. At December 31, 2013, the Company's total unrecognized
stock-based compensation costs amounted to approximately $523 thousand.

K. Revenue recognition from binary option business:

The Company generates revenues from its binary options business. The online binary options trading business
involves a customer trying to predict the occurrence of a future event that will be settled in a win or lose situation at
expiration or the end of the day. There is only a win or lose situation (binary option) and the gain or loss is
recognized once every hour, or at the end of each day. Thus, each event commences and ends on the same day. The
revenues are principally generated from the margin between winning customers to losing customers. In a winning
situation (when either a higher or a lower strike price has been achieved at the expiration of the underlying asset) the
binary option entitles a customer a fixed return (usually around 75%) in addition to the transaction amount. In a
losing situation (when the customer’s prediction is not fulfilled) the customer loses between 85%-90% of the
transaction price. In its consolidated statement of operations the Company recognizes revenues from the binary
options on a net basis.

L. Research and development costs:
Research and development costs, including direct and allocated expenses are expensed as incurred.
M. Severance Pay:

The Company's liability for severance pay is calculated pursuant to Israeli Severance Pay Law, based on the most
recent salary of the relevant employees multiplied by the number of years of employment as of the balance sheet
date. These employees are entitled to one month's salary for each year of employment or a portion thereof. The
Company's liability for these employees is fully provided for through monthly deposits to the employees' pension and
management insurance policies and an accrual. The value of these deposits is recorded as an asset on the Company's
consolidated balance sheet.

The carrying value of the deposited funds is based on the cash surrender value and includes profits accumulated up to
the balance sheet date. The deposited funds may be withdrawn only upon the fulfillment of the obligation pursuant to
the Israeli Severance Pay Law.

—Severance expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounted to $87,267 and $44,436,

respectively.
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.):
N. Comprehensive income:

As the Company has no comprehensive income (loss), there is no difference between net loss and
total comprehensive income (loss).

0. Income taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification No. 740, Income
Taxes ("ASC No. 740"). ASC No. 740 prescribes the use of the liability method, whereby deferred tax asset and
liability account balances are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and
liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse. The Company provides a valuation allowance, if necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to their
estimated realizable value if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

ASC No. 740 contains a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring a liability for uncertain tax positions. The
first step is to evaluate the tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return by determining if the weight of
available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that, on an evaluation of the technical merits, the tax
position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. The second step
is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate
settlement.

P. Financial Instruments:
1. Concentrations of credit risk:

Financial instruments that have the potential to expose the Company to credit risks are mainly cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposit accounts, and trade receivables.

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents, and deposit accounts at large banks in Israel, the United States, and
Europe, thereby substantially reducing the risk of loss.

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers for the purpose of determining the appropriate
allowance for doubtful accounts and generally does not require collateral. An appropriate allowance for doubtful
accounts is included in the accounts.

2. Fair value measurement:
The Company measures fair value and discloses fair value measurements for financial and non-financial assets and

liabilities. Fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

F-12

96



Edgar Filing: EZTrader Inc. - Form 10-12G

EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.):
P. Financial Instruments (Cont.):
2. Fair value measurement (Cont.):

The accounting standard establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used to
measure fair value into three broad levels, which are described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for assets or
liabilities. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs.

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets, but corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available. The fair value hierarchy gives the
lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible and considers counterparty credit risk in its assessment
of fair value.

Q. Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share — EPS:

Basic net income per share is computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
each year. Diluted net income per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding during each year, plus dilutive potential shares of common stock considered outstanding during the
year, in accordance with ASC 260, Earnings Per Share.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013, the Company incurred a net loss and therefore no diluted
EPS was presented and all common stock equivalents were anti-dilutive.

R. Reclassifications:
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
S. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:
In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”) issued ASU No. 2014-08, Presentation of Financial
Statements (Topic 205): Property, Plant, and Equipment, and(Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and
Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity. The amendments in this standard change the requirements for
reporting discontinued operations in Subtopic 205-20. The amendments in this update will be effective prospectively

for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within those years. The Company
does not expect a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements upon adoption.
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 2 -SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.):

S.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements (Cont.):

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from contracts with customers (Topic 606).The
core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply a five
step methodology: (1) identify the contract(s) with a customer; (2) identify the performance obligations in the
contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. An entity
should apply the amendments in this update using one of the following two methods: (1) retrospectively to
each prior reporting period presented (along with some practical expedients); or (2) retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this update recognized at the date of initial application. The
amendments in this update will be effective prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of this update on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT:

Items carried at fair value as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are classified in the table below in one of the three
categories described in Note 2.P.2.

Fair value measurements using input type
December 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $175,812 $- $- $175,812
Short term deposit - - - -
$175,812 $- $- $175,812
Fair value measurements using input type
December 31, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $63,200 $- $- $63,200
Short term deposit 22,716 - - 22,716
$85,916 $- $- $85,916
F-14
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EZTRADER, INC. (formerly: WIN GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 4 - OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

December 31,

2013 2012
Government authorities $36,639 $-
Deferred issuance costs 58,395 -
Prepaid expenses and other 24,109 4,500

$119,143 $4,500
NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET:

December 31,

2013 2012
Cost:
Computers and peripheral equipment $187,631 $150,268
Electronic devices 11,619 7,642
Leasehold improvements 36,576 15,704
Office furniture and equipment 23,635 13,928

259,461 187,542

Accumulated depreciation:

Computers and peripheral equipment 86,942 58,739
Electronic devices 4,090 2,103
Leasehold improvements 7,443 4,175
Office furniture and equipment 9,436 1,915
107,911 66,932
Depreciated cost $151,550 $120,610

Depreciation expenses were $40,979 and $33,585 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 6: - INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

In May 2011, WGM and Venice Technologies Ltd., an Israeli corporation ("Venice"), entered into a Purchase
Agreement (the "Venice Agreement"), pursuant to which WGM agreed to purchase Venice's customer database
(including liability to customers) and online trading of binary options software, including the domain name
www.eztrader.com, for $625,000 of which $500,000 was paid in cash at closing in June 2011. With respect to the
remainder of the consideration in the amount of $125,000, Venice had the option to either (i) receive the consideration
on September 1, 2011, or (ii) receive 1,562,500 shares of the Company's common stock by such date. This option was
recorded as a derivative liability in the amount of $64,000 in addition to the liability of $125,000. On September 1,
2011, the option was expired and the Company paid Venice the remaining $125,000.

Upon payment of the $125,000 and expiration of the option, the balance of the derivative liability in the amount of
$64,000 was written off to finance income. The total purchase price of $689,000 was evaluated by an independent
valuator expert and was attributed to customer database in the amount of $866,000, software platform in the amount
of $281,000 and a liability to customers in the amount of $458,000. The software platform is being amortized over a 3
year period and the customer database over 1 year, each of which represents their economic useful life.

The balance of intangible assets as of December 31, 2013 includes the unamortized amount of the software platform
which amounted to $39,028.

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounted to $93,666 and $454,500,
respectively.

NOTE 7 - ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER ACCOUNT PAYABLES:

December 31,

2013 2012
Accrued expenses to suppliers and others $828,887 $142,000
Employees and wage-related liabilities 401,131 307,352

$1,230,018  $449,352
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (U.S. dollars)

NOTE 8 - CONVERTIBLE LOANS:

A.On May 12, 2013, the Company entered into a Finance Agreement with Activa Red Green (the "Lender"), pursuant
to which the Lender loaned to the Company $100,000 with a maturity date of May 11, 2014 (the "Loan").

The Loan bears annual interest of 20%. In addition, in the event of default and nonpayment the Loan shall bear
additional penalty interest of 4% per annum. The Lender is entitled to convert the loan into shares of common stock
of the Company at a conversion price of $0.10 per a share and upon such conversion receive with a warrant to
purchase 1/10 share of common stock at the a price per share of $0.10. The loan was fully paid in May, 2014.

The Company determined that the convertible loan does not fall within the scope of ASC 480-10: Distinguishing
Liabilities from Equity.. The embedded conversion feature should not be bifurcated in accordance with ASC 815:
Derivatives and Hedging. In addition, the Company followed ASC 470-20: Debt, to determine whether a beneficial
conversion feature exists at loan inception and came to the conclusion that a beneficial conversion feature should not
be recognized.

B.On October 29, 2013 (the "Closing Date"), the Company entered into a Convertible Loan agreement, according to
which, the lenders will provide a loan in the amount of $1,391,000. The loan bears an annual interest of 10% to be
repaid in one lump sum with the loan principal upon the lapse of one year as of the Closing Date. The lenders may
convert the loan into shares on each of the dates falling upon: (1) the lapse of six (6) months as of the Closing Date,
and (2) the lapse of one (1) year as of the Closing Date. The loan is convertible into "Conversion Units" which in
total include 7,291,534 common shares of the Company, and Warrants exercisable into 729,151 ordinary shares of
the Company each at a strike price of $0.19078 for a period of 18 months after issuance. The lenders are entitled to
require that the loan shall be repaid upon the lapse of six (6) months as of the Closing, by delivering a written notice
to the Company at least 21 days prior to such date, and in such case the Company shall repay the loan (principal and
interest accrued until such date) on such earlier date.

The Company determined that the convertible loan does not fall within the scope of ASC 480-10. The embedded
conversion feature and the prepayment clause should not be bifurcated in accordance with ASC 815. In addition, the
Company followed ASC 470-20 to determine whether a beneficial conversion feature exists at loan inception and
came to the conclusion that a beneficial conversion feature should not be recognized.

The Company recorded issuance costs of approximately $73 thousand, which is amortized using the effective interest

rate of the loan over the loan period. As of December 31, 2013, the deferred issuance costs balance of $58 thousand
was presented in other accounts receivable.
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NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:
Lease commitments:

The Company leases its facilities under a lease agreement in Israel. This location for 2012 consists of approximately
250 square meters of office space and the rent is approximately $3,600 per month. The Company has a new location
beginning February 1, 2013 and ending January 31, 2015 of approximately 570 square meter for $7,719 monthly rent.
On December 2013, the Company signed an amendment to the existing rent agreement, according to which the
Company will rent office space of approximately 850 square meter for a monthly rent of approximately $11,000 per
month. Simultaneously, on December 2013, the Company entered into a property management agreement, according
to which the Company will pay to a management company a monthly fee to cover the relative part of the building
expenses of the facilities rented in the amount equal to costs plus 15%.

Future minimum commitments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Rental of

Year ending December 31, premises
2014 $ 176,583

2015 15,887
$ 192,470

Total rent and related expenses for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $133,290 and $47,933,
respectively.

NOTE 10 - EQUITY:
A. Shareholders’ rights:

The shares of common stock confer upon the holders the right to elect the directors and to receive notice to
participate and vote in the shareholders meetings of the Company, and the right to receive dividends, if and when
declared. A special meeting of shareholders of the Company was held on January 25, 2012. The Company's
shareholders approved an amendment to the amended Articles of Incorporation of the Company to increase the
number of authorized shares of its common stock from 75,000,000 shares, par value $0.001 per share, to 150,000,000
shares, par value $0.001 per share.

B.On November 8, 2012, the Company entered into securities purchase agreements with three existing shareholders,
including certain of its management, pursuant to which the Company sold 3,790,000 shares and warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 379,000 shares of common stock (the “Warrants”) at exercise prices per share of $0.10. No
separate consideration was paid for the Warrants. The Warrants are exercisable on or after May 8, 2013 until
twenty-four months from the date of issuance thereof. The aggregate net proceeds from the sale of the shares and
issuance of the Warrants amounted to $379,000.
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NOTE 10 - EQUITY (Cont.):
B. (Cont.):

On March 5, 2013, the Company issued an aggregate of 1,368,920 shares of common stock in connection with the
cashless and cash-based (aggregate cash amount of $53,513) exercises of $500,000 of warrants issued in connection
with the Company's March 2008 convertible debt transaction with Mr. Shimon Citron, the Company's CEO and a
director.

On June 12, 2013, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement (the "SPA") with Ricx Investments Ltd.
(the "Investor"), pursuant to which the Company issued to the Investor 4,295,220 shares of restricted common stock
(the "Investor's Shares") of the Company at a price of $0.10 per share, and issued a warrant to purchase 859,044
shares of common stock (the "Warrant") at an exercise price per share of $0.10. No separate consideration was paid
for the Warrant. The Warrant expires on June 12, 2016. The net proceeds from the issuance of the Investor's Shares
and the Warrant amounted to $429,522 and were recorded in equity. The transaction closed on June 12, 2013.

On December 10, 2013, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement (the "December SPA") with three
investors (the "Investors"), pursuant to which the Company issued to the Investors 1,920,631 shares of common stock
(the "Investor's Shares") at a price of $0.19 per share, and issued a warrant to purchase 192,063 shares of common
stock (the "December Warrant") of the Company at an exercise price per share of $0.19. No separate consideration
was paid for the December Warrant. The December Warrant expires on December 10, 2015. The net proceeds from
the issuance of the Investor's Shares and the Warrant amounted to $366,418 and was recorded in equity under
prepayment on account of shares due to delay in issuing the shares, but the December SPA was approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors. The transaction costs of approximately $20 thousand were recorded as a deduction
from prepayment on account of shares.

C. Warrants to purchase common stock:

The Company accounted for these warrants as equity instruments based on the guidance of ASC 815, "Derivatives
and Hedging", ASC 480-10, "Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity", its related FASB staff positions, ASC 815-40
"Contracts in Entity's Own Stock" and the AICPA Technical Practice Aid for accounting for preferred shares and
warrants, including the roadmap for accounting for freestanding financial instruments indexed to, and potentially
settled in, a company's own stock.
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NOTE 10 - EQUITY (Cont.):

C. Warrants to purchase common stock (Cont.):
Significant terms of warrants to purchase common stock are as follows as of December 31, 2013:
Warrants for ~ Exercise
common price per
Expiration Date stock share
$
October 2015 1,875,000 0.08
December 2015 192,063 0.19
June 2016 3,125,000 0.08
June 2016 859,044 0.10
August 2016 2,925,000 0.08
November 2017 379,000 0.10
February 2018 6,250,000 0.08
June, 2018 6,250,000 0.10
21,855,107
D. Stock option plans:

1.0n November 23, 2004, the Company adopted the 2004 Global Share Option Plan (the “2004 Global Share Option

Plan”). The 2004 Global Share Option Plan is intended to provide incentives to employees, directors and consultants
by providing them with opportunities to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock. Under the terms of the
2004 Global Share Option Plan, it is effective as of November 23, 2004 and terminates at the end of ten years from
such date, which has been extended for additional ten years expiring in 2024. The Company initially reserved
5,000,000 authorized but unissued shares of its common stock to be issued under the 2004 Global Share Option
Plan. On May 4, 2006, April 15, 2012 and September 13, 2012, the Company’s Board approved amendments to its
2004 Global Share Option Plan under which the number of shares reserved by the Company for the purpose of the
2004 Global Share Option Plan were increased from 5,000,000 to 8,000,000, 16,000,000 and 20,000,000,
respectively. The exercise price of the options granted under the plans may not be less than the nominal value of
the shares into which such options are exercised. The options vest primarily over three years. Any options that are
forfeited or not exercised before expiration become available for future grants.
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NOTE 10 - EQUITY (Cont.):
E. Stock option plans (Cont.):

2. A summary of the Company’s share option activity to employees and directors and related information is as
follows:

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of options price of options price
$ $
Outstanding at the beginning
of the year 8,705,261 0.44 7,505,261 0.44
Granted 7,610,000 0.10 1,200,000 0.10
Forfeited (1,572,500 ) 0.10 - -
Expired (1,827,500 ) 0.51 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 12,915,261 0.27 8,705,261 0.44
Options exercisable at the end
of the year 7,185,261 0.40 7,830,261 0.47
Weighted-average fair value of options
granted during the year $0.08 $0.10

3. The Company granted options in 2012 and 2013. The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of
grant, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: dividend

yield of 0% for 2013 and 2012; expected volatility: 2013 — 86%, 2012 — 353%; risk-free interest rate 2013 — 0.37%,
2012 - 2.0%; expected life: 2013 — 3.5 years, 2012 — 4 years. There was no intrinsic value for options outstanding

during 2013 and 2012 as the market price of the share was lower than the exercise price.

4. The Company is required to assume a dividend yield as an input in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The
dividend yield assumption is based on the Company’s historical experience and expectation of future dividend
payouts and may be subject to change in the future.

The Company uses historical volatility in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, “Stock Compensation”. The

computation of volatility uses volatility derived from similar traded companies.
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NOTE 10 - EQUITY (Cont.):

D. Stock option plans (Cont.):

4. (Cont.):

The risk-free interest rate assumption is the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero coupon bonds,
issued with a remaining term equal to the expected life term of the Company’s options.

Pre-vesting forfeiture rates were estimated based on pre-vesting forfeiture experience.
The Company uses the simplified method to compute the expected option term for options granted.
The options outstanding as of December 31, 2013, have been classified by ranges of exercise price, as follows:

Options Weighted Options

outstanding average exercisable
as of remaining as of
December
December 31, contractual 31,
Exercise
price 2013 life 2013
$ (years)
0.06 2,100,000 4.71 2,100,000
0.1 7,060,000 4.14 1,330,000
0.11 1,500,000 1.72 1,500,000
0.725 200,000 2.26 200,000
1 192,261 2.04 192,261
1.15 1,863,000 2.58 1,863,000
12,915,261 7,185,261
F-22
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NOTE 11 - TAXES ON INCOME:

A. Loss (income) before taxes on income:
Year ended December 31,
2013 2012
Domestic $ 1,776,361 $ 2,612,326
Foreign 1,565,665 (281,758 )
$ 3,342,026 $ 2,330,568
B. Deferred income taxes:

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of
the Company and its subsidiaries’ deferred tax assets are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012
Operating loss carry-forwards and temporary differences $ 4,566,597 $ 6,086,518
Deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 4,566,597 6,086,518
Valuation allowance $ (4,566,597) (6,086,518)
Net deferred tax asset $ - $ -

As of December 31, 2013, the Company and its subsidiaries have provided valuation allowances of $4,566,597 in
respect of deferred tax assets resulting from tax loss carry-forwards and other temporary differences. Management
currently believes that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax regarding the loss carry-forwards and other
temporary differences will not be realized in the foreseeable future. The change in valuation allowance was
$1,519,921 in 2013.

C. Net operating losses carry-forwards:

The Company had accumulated losses for tax purposes as of December 31, 2013, in the amount of approximately
$12.7 million which may be carried forward and offset against taxable income, and which expire during the years
2023 through 2026.

D. Tax rates on Israeli subsidiary:

The Israeli corporate tax rate was in 25% in 2012 and 2013.

On July 30, 2013, the Israeli parliament approved the Bill for the Change of National Priorities (Legislation

Amendments for Achieving the Budget Targets for the years 2013 and 2014) (hereinafter: the "Law"). The main

change included in the Law with respect to taxation is an increase of corporation tax by 1.5% from 2014 onwards
(from 25% to 26.5%).
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E. A reconciliation of the theoretical tax:
The main reconciling items between the statutory tax rate of the Company and the zero effective tax rate are the

non-recognition of the benefits from accumulated net operating carry-forward losses among the various subsidiaries
due to the uncertainty of the realization of such tax benefits.
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NOTE 11: - TAXES ON INCOME (Cont.):
F. Income taxes on non-U.S. subsidiaries:
Non-U.S. subsidiaries are taxed according to the tax laws in their respective country of residence.
U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes were not provided for on undistributed earnings of the Company's
foreign subsidiaries. The Company intends to reinvest these earnings indefinitely in its foreign subsidiaries. If these
earnings were distributed to the U.S. in the form of dividends or otherwise, the Company would be subject to
additional U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits) and foreign withholding taxes.

G. Uncertain tax position:

The Company has recorded no liability for income taxes associated with unrecognized tax benefits as of December
31,2013 and 2012.

NOTE 12 - GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE:

December 31

2013 2012
Payroll and related expenses $237,857 $203,158
Legal fees 288,399 108,562
Management fees 498,158 200,000
Professional fees 267,328 342,890
Maintenance 119,107 40,665
Rent 87,267 47,933
Stock-based compensation 105,955 64,298
Depreciation and amortization 45,169 33,585
Car expenses 76,478 58,667
Travel and entertainment 18,739 80,229
Other 185,719 20,184

$1,930,176  $1,200,171
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NOTE 13 - FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSE), NET:

December 31

2013 2012
Foreign currency exchange differences $(118,407 )$254,351
Interest, bank charges and fees, net (223,809 ) (57,194 )

$(342,216 )$197,157

NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTIES:

Transactions December 31
2013 2012
Management fees $498,158  $200,000
$498,158  $200,000
Balances December 31
2013 2012
Short-term loan $75,460 $64.,761
Accrued fees and bonuses 359,683 129,714

$435,143  $194,475
NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

A.In February 2014, the Company issued convertible loans to new and existing shareholders for a total consideration
of $2.8 million. The principal amount of the loans (but not the accrued interest) is convertible at any time before
maturity into 7,963,542 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.35 per share. The loans bear interest at
an annual rate of 10%. The loans and accrued interest are repayable at maturity in one year from the date of receipt
of the loans, unless converted earlier by the lender. The lender may elect to extend the maturity for an additional
year.

B.In May 2014, the Company signed a share purchase agreement with new and existing shareholders for the issuance
of 7,880,000 common shares for total consideration of $3,940,000. In addition, the Company issued to the
shareholders, for no additional consideration, 788,000 warrants exercisable into 788,000 common shares at an
exercise price of $0.50 per share, for a period of five years commencing six months after the date of the closing of
the agreement.
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(b) Exhibits

The following documents are filed as exhibits hereto:

Exhibit
Number

3.1%
3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5%
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5%

10.6*
10.7

10.8*

Exhibit Description
Composite copy of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation as amended on July 14, 2014.

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Form SB-2 (File No. 333-91356) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 27, 2002).

Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated March 6, 2008 issued by the Company to Shimon Citron
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-51255) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 14, 2008).

Form of Common Stock purchase Warrant dated November 8, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.7 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March
27,2013).

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated June 12, 2013, issued by the Company to Ricx
Investments Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 14, 2013).

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated December 10, 2013, issued by the Company to certain
Investors

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated May 2014, issued by the Company to certain Investors

2004 Global Share Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Annual Report on Form
10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 27, 2013).

Sample Agreement under the Company’s 2004 Global Share Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.25 to our Annual Report on Form 10K-SB (File No. 000-51255) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 11, 2006).

Consulting Agreement, dated September 23, 2008, between the Company and Citron Investments Ltd.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-51255) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 25, 2008).

Addendum dated December 9, 2010, to Consulting Agreement, dated September 23, 2008, between the
Company and Citron Investments Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 13, 2010).

Addendum dated November 1, 2013, to Consulting Agreement, dated September 23,2008, between the
Company and Citron Investments Ltd.

Employment Agreement, dated October 31, 2013, between the Company and Shimon Citron.

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated June 12, 2013, between Ricx Investments Ltd. and the registrant.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on June 14, 2013).
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Finance Agreement dated May 12, 2013, by and among the Company, Win Global Markets (Israel) Ltd.
and Activa Red Green Litd.

10.9* Form of Convertible Loans Agreement dated October 29, 2013, by and among the Company and
Company’s shareholders

10.10*¥ Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated December 10, 2013, by and among the Company and
Company’s shareholders

10.11* Form of Convertible Loans Agreement dated February 2014, by and among the Company and Company’s
shareholders.

10.12* Form of Share Purchase Agreement dated May 2014, by and among the Company and Company’s
shareholders

21.1*%  List of subsidiaries.

101**  XBRL. The following materials from the Company's Registration Statement on Form 10 are formatted in
XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the
Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity, (iv) the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) related notes to these financial statements, tagged as
blocks of text and in detail.

* Filed herewith.
*ox Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

EZTrader, INC.

By: /s/ Shimon Citron
Name: Shimon Citron
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date: September 15, 2014
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